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  1 P R O C E E D I N G S

  2 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Good morning.  The 

  3 hour of 9:30 having arrived, I'm going to call 

  4 this hearing of the House Game and Fisheries 

  5 Committee to order.  

  6 Today's topic is the role that county 

  7 treasurers play in the antlerless deer 

  8 allocation process.  We have speakers 

  9 scheduled that will offer testimony from 

 10 several perspectives and will update the 

 11 members as to how the new changes regarding 

 12 the matter in which antlerless permits were 

 13 allocated and distributed this year have 

 14 worked out.  

 15 Before we begin, I would like the 

 16 members of the committee, starting on the 

 17 lower level, far left, to identify themselves 

 18 and the districts that they represent.  

 19 REPRESENTATIVE COSTA:  Representative 

 20 Dom Costa, 21st District, Allegheny County.

 21 REPRESENTATIVE SONNEY:  

 22 Representative Curt Sonney, 4th Legislative 

 23 District, Erie County.  

 24 REPRESENTATIVE ROCK:  Representative 

 25 Todd Rock, 90th District, Franklin County.  
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  1 REPRESENTATIVE PEIFER:  Good 

  2 morning.  Mike Peifer, I represent the 139th 

  3 District, which is Pike, Wayne, and Monroe 

  4 Counties.

  5 REPRESENTATIVE HALUSKA:  Gary 

  6 Haluska, 73rd District, Cambria County.  

  7 REPRESENTATIVE MCGEEHAN:  Good 

  8 morning.  I'm Mike McGeehan from Philadelphia 

  9 County.  

 10 REPRESENTATIVE KULA:  Good morning.  

 11 Representative Deberah Kula, Fayette and 

 12 Westmoreland County. 

 13 REPRESENTATIVE PYLE:  Sorry, I didn't 

 14 hear.  

 15 Jeff Pyle, 60th Legislative District, 

 16 Armstrong and Indiana County. 

 17 REPRESENTATIVE STABACK:  Ed Staback, 

 18 Lackawanna and southern Wayne. 

 19 REPRESENTATIVE GILLESPIE:  Good 

 20 morning, everybody.  Keith Gillespie, 47th 

 21 District, part of York County.  

 22 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Thank you.  

 23 Our first testimony will come from 

 24 the Pennsylvania Game Commission, Executive 

 25 Director Carl Roe, seated up front, is with 
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  1 us, and, Carl, you can begin your testimony 

  2 whenever you're ready.  

  3 MR. ROE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  

  4 Good morning, Chairman Staback and 

  5 members of the House Game and Fisheries 

  6 Committee.  It is a great pleasure to appear 

  7 before the committee today to discuss the 

  8 antlerless license process, the point-of-sale 

  9 system, better known as the Pennsylvania 

 10 Automated License System, or PALS.  

 11 We believe the deployment of PALS has 

 12 been an unqualified success.  Our license 

 13 sales are very complicated, and the 

 14 development of a system to handle that took 

 15 extraordinary effort and a lot of work by our 

 16 personnel, our support team, and the vendor.  

 17 Overall, the system has been very 

 18 stable under the most demanding circumstances, 

 19 and all reports from our vendors are that the 

 20 system delivered as promised.  That's not to 

 21 stay we did not have some initial problems 

 22 with some license sales, particularly in some 

 23 of the larger chain stores, due to rapid 

 24 turnover of personnel and their unfamiliarity 

 25 with the system.  These problems were 
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  1 attributed to human error and not system 

  2 error.  

  3 Overall, we believe the system has 

  4 streamlined the operations and certainly 

  5 lessened the burden of reporting for all our 

  6 vendors. 

  7 Regarding the sales of antlerless 

  8 license, this year we changed the antlerless 

  9 application system to accommodate requests 

 10 from the county treasurers to receive the 

 11 antlerless applications directly.  With the 

 12 new automated system, we were able to fulfill 

 13 that request.  

 14 This year, the hunter sent his 

 15 license to a county treasurer of his or her 

 16 choice, and the treasurer would fill the 

 17 application on a first come, first serve basis 

 18 by mail until the allocation for that wildlife 

 19 management unit was exhausted.  All treasurers 

 20 would sell all wildlife management units.  

 21 This provides great flexibility in the 

 22 system.  

 23 Additionally, each hunter could 

 24 choose three wildlife management units in 

 25 priority for where they wanted to hunt.  They 
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  1 would receive their first choice, if 

  2 available.  If not, they would get their 

  3 second choice, or if not, their third choice.  

  4 We believe this would provide the optimum 

  5 opportunity for hunters to get at least one 

  6 license in the first round.  

  7 An additional feature that we 

  8 implemented this year was the ability of an 

  9 application to log into our website and see if 

 10 the antlerless license was issued.  This 

 11 allowed hunters a more convenient and up-to-

 12 the-minute way to determine whether they had 

 13 received an antlerless license or not.  And 

 14 this was opposed to making a phone call into 

 15 the county treasurer or waiting till their 

 16 check cleared their bank account.  

 17 From the feedback we received, I 

 18 believe that this particular system feature 

 19 was well received by our hunters.  

 20 For the most part, county treasurers 

 21 responded well to the system.  We did have 

 22 some county treasurers who did not follow the 

 23 process or the requirements.  And some of 

 24 those shortcomings included selling the lower 

 25 unit preference when the higher preference was 
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  1 still available, selling a general hunting 

  2 license and then selling an antlerless license 

  3 in the next minute, some cases of block sales, 

  4 sales starting late, and selling license 

  5 early.  

  6 We will do a complete analysis at the 

  7 end of the year, and we will send the 

  8 appropriate county treasurer a letter noting 

  9 the specific deficiencies and the steps they 

 10 can take to remedy it in the future.  

 11 My staff and I had the opportunity to 

 12 spend some time with the county treasurers 

 13 just last week to go over some of the PALS 

 14 issues and what they thought of the system.  

 15 We also discussed some of the deficiencies, 

 16 and we had a very open and positive dialogue 

 17 on this year's program, and they provided 

 18 input on improvements.  I did emphasize that 

 19 the system allows the commission to monitor 

 20 every transaction, and they would not have as 

 21 much flexibility as in the past. 

 22 As far as the future of antlerless 

 23 license sales is concerned, I believe the 

 24 general consensus within the hunting community 

 25 is in favor of allowing a license buyer to 

9



  1 purchase their antlerless license directly 

  2 from the commission.  

  3 Throughout my tenure as executive 

  4 director, I've had the pleasure of attending 

  5 many sportsmen's town halls throughout the 

  6 state.  And probably one of the most common 

  7 questions I receive has to do with the 

  8 purchase of antlerless licenses and whether it 

  9 is time to move away from what many believe to 

 10 be an antiquated system of filling out paper 

 11 application, putting in an envelope, into the 

 12 mail, toward a more efficient system in which 

 13 the license buyer can purchase a general 

 14 hunting license and walk away from the vendor 

 15 knowing he will, in fact, have an antlerless 

 16 license in the unit of choosing that year. 

 17 Due to the development of our 

 18 licensing system, the Game Commission has the 

 19 capability of devising a system that can do 

 20 that.  As part of our current system, we 

 21 annually sell approximately 2.5 million 

 22 different licenses, from general hunting 

 23 license to migratory bird, archery stamps, 

 24 bear stamps, and antlerless licenses.  

 25 If the law were changed to allow the 
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  1 commission to sell antlerless licenses, I have 

  2 no doubt that we would be able to build a 

  3 system to hand the change of antlerless 

  4 license sales with little or no difficulty.  I 

  5 would only ask for some time to develop an 

  6 appropriate and equitable, emphasize 

  7 equitable, system which provides the best 

  8 possible service to our licensed hunters.  

  9 Thank you for the opportunity to 

 10 provide this information.  I'll be glad to 

 11 answer any questions.  

 12 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Carl, thank you 

 13 very much for your testimony.  

 14 My first question deals with perhaps 

 15 complaints that you may have received earlier 

 16 on the allocation process.  We were told, I do 

 17 believe, that the commission was inundated 

 18 with inquiries -- prefer to use the term 

 19 "inquiry" at this point in time -- regarding 

 20 the manner in which the antlerless permits 

 21 were being allocated and distributed.  

 22 Can you differentiate for us the 

 23 difference between what the inquiries were 

 24 versus what the complaints were?  And if there 

 25 were complaints, you know, what were the 
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  1 complaints about primarily?  

  2 MR. ROE:  That's a great question.  

  3 Every year during antlerless, we get lots of 

  4 phone calls of people, because you have a 

  5 limited commodity.  Some people are successful 

  6 in getting their wildlife management unit, 

  7 some aren't.  And again, this year, we had a 

  8 new system, so there were some calls on 

  9 those.  

 10 As I recall, through our GM comment 

 11 on our website, we had over -- we look at this 

 12 every month or every quarter.  We had over 

 13 sixty direct e-mail inquiries and then 

 14 numerous phone calls.  We still get phone 

 15 calls on right now:  I didn't get my 

 16 antlerless license.  I did this, did that.  

 17 And we look at all those.  And we try to do an 

 18 evaluation.  If there's a good case there, if, 

 19 in fact, there was a fault of the game 

 20 commission or the county treasurer or the U.S. 

 21 mail, we will try to accommodate those 

 22 individual ones.  

 23 But generally across the board, I 

 24 think part of it was there was a new system 

 25 this year.  I would say complaints were up a 
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  1 little bit, but every year we get complaints 

  2 on antlerless because it's a limited commodity  

  3 in some wildlife management units. 

  4 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Thank you.

  5 Now, the complaints that you were 

  6 receiving, did they come from any particular 

  7 part of the state, or were they state wide?  

  8 MR. ROE:  We did have one county 

  9 office that didn't start selling -- didn't 

 10 start processing the antlerless licenses right 

 11 away, and there was a two- or three-day delay, 

 12 and that caused some consternation in that 

 13 group up in the northwest.  

 14 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  And the 

 15 Pennsylvania hunters that applied in that 

 16 particular area, did they lose out, Carl, on 

 17 getting the crack at the first wave of doe 

 18 tags issued?  

 19 MR. ROE:  I would have no way of 

 20 knowing that.  I mean, we have -- the ones 

 21 we've gotten complaints from, we went back and 

 22 looked, and if you follow those fees a little 

 23 bit, they would have gotten one during that 

 24 delay time frame, we issued them from 

 25 Harrisburg.  
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  1 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Okay.

  2 MR. ROE:  But in reality, what we -- 

  3 we found that that county office was, in fact, 

  4 behind selling.  Two or three days later, I 

  5 would say, we said, Okay, we've got to 

  6 distribute some of them.  So they were 

  7 distributed to other counties to process 

  8 also.  That was not our first choice because 

  9 it adds delay into the process.

 10 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Okay.  Carl, can 

 11 you go into a little more detail on the 

 12 options available between allocating doe 

 13 permits with the new computerized system?  

 14 What do you see as the strength and weaknesses 

 15 of that kind of a system today?  

 16 MR. ROE:  In our current system?  

 17 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Yes.

 18 MR. ROE:  Again, we have sixty-six 

 19 county offices -- county offices and 

 20 treasurers dealing with the different 

 21 population in the sense that they're 

 22 constituents, it's a constituent environment, 

 23 where an automated sale system would just 

 24 be -- it's a customer environment, so to 

 25 speak.  
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  1 I think the system, for a first year, 

  2 overall worked pretty well.  And, again, as I 

  3 said earlier, we see every transaction that's 

  4 made from all our vendors, and when we see 

  5 some errors being made or some people not 

  6 quite following the regulatory process, we'll 

  7 work on cleaning that up, or some county 

  8 treasurers may have gotten a little loose in 

  9 some areas.

 10 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Carl, if indeed, 

 11 the Game Commission was authorized to go in 

 12 and handle the entire process, do you have any 

 13 notion right at this point exactly how you 

 14 would be working that process?  And primarily, 

 15 how would you avoid this Black Friday kind of 

 16 a concept of the day that the doe tags were 

 17 available?  Right?  And you would avoid 

 18 thousands of thousands of people coming at 

 19 about the same time, believing that the first 

 20 come, first serve concept would be in effect.  

 21 MR. ROE:  That's one of the 

 22 challenges of building an automated system.  

 23 Right now, the system has the capability of 

 24 issuing antlerless licenses on a first come, 

 25 first serve basis, but as a matter of public 
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  1 policy, I don't think that's equitable.  In 

  2 the sense that if you're sitting at your home 

  3 computer on the first day of antlerless 

  4 license or first day of general license sales, 

  5 you order one through the Internet, part of 

  6 the plain population doesn't have a computer, 

  7 so, therefore, they can't access the same 

  8 availability of that license.  

  9 So, as we build this system, one of 

 10 the things I was always concerned about was 

 11 being equitable, a good public policy should 

 12 at least be equitable.  So basically what we 

 13 would do is build a system that when you walk 

 14 in with your -- and purchase your general 

 15 hunting license, you would put down one, two, 

 16 three choices, and there would be an instant 

 17 lottery for one of those three choices.  You'd 

 18 walk away with your general hunting license 

 19 and one of your first three choices if that 

 20 wildlife management unit's -- those wildlife 

 21 management units were still available at that 

 22 point in time.

 23 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Carl, did the Game 

 24 Commission have a lot of contact with the 

 25 county treasurers before this new system went 
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  1 into place?  

  2 MR. ROE:  We certainly have been 

  3 talking about the PALS system for a year and a 

  4 half with them.  I think we meet almost twice 

  5 a year and discuss some of it.  

  6 The last meeting we didn't get to 

  7 because we were putting the final touches on 

  8 implementing the whole system.  I did take the 

  9 opportunity, with invitation from Craig 

 10 Ebersole, the county treasurer in Lancaster 

 11 County, to go down to his office and meet with 

 12 him prior to the sales and go over some issues 

 13 they might have had, that we could have -- 

 14 helped in the process a little bit.

 15 Additionally, we hired an individual, 

 16 Mike Hobson, who's here today, to, in fact, 

 17 handle the new automated license system, 

 18 really in focusing and working with county 

 19 treasurers, also.

 20 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Okay.  Thank you 

 21 Carl.  

 22 Representative Pyle.

 23 REPRESENTATIVE PYLE:  Thank you, 

 24 Mr. Chairman.  

 25 Director Roe, good to see you again. 
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  1 Question.  Since the Game Commission 

  2 undertook this process instituting PALS, is it 

  3 completely, fully deployed all over the state 

  4 at this point?  

  5 MR. ROE:  Yes.

  6 REPRESENTATIVE PYLE:  Next question.  

  7 I know in this on-line system, a person is 

  8 allowed to identify three WMU.  They do not 

  9 necessarily have to be their own county.  

 10 MR. ROE:  Correct.

 11 REPRESENTATIVE PYLE:  Is there -- and 

 12 I bring this up because this happened to a 

 13 buddy of mine, a guy applied for one WMU, put 

 14 down a second choice, third choice, got his 

 15 second choice, went on line and found out 

 16 there were still available tags in the first 

 17 choice.  Is there a process by which somebody, 

 18 who, say, has a camp in, you know, WMU F, but 

 19 gets turned down for the license, his 

 20 preferred license, when there's still some 

 21 available, is there a method by which that guy 

 22 can appeal that and get the permit he asked 

 23 for?  

 24 MR. ROE:  Yes, he can.  He can send 

 25 that to us.  
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  1 But I would also offer that there's a 

  2 delay between when licenses get sold -- let's 

  3 say during the day, our website says how many 

  4 licenses are available, there's a delay in 

  5 that process, where the sales are 

  6 instantaneous.  So let's say there were a 

  7 thousand left at that WMU that morning, those 

  8 thousand could have been sold by 10 o'clock in 

  9 the morning.  It may not reflect that change 

 10 until the next day on a website.  So there is 

 11 a delay in that information.  

 12 We're looking at a way, maybe, to 

 13 make that process instantaneous.  There's a 

 14 database issue in how that gets moved back and 

 15 forth, but we may be able to figure a way to 

 16 make that a little tighter, but if they feel 

 17 that that happened, if he has the dates and 

 18 everything, have him send it to me, and we'll 

 19 take a look at it, and we'll go into the 

 20 system to find out exactly.  We can tell you 

 21 it was 10:15 and 23 seconds when that last 

 22 license was sold in that WMU.  

 23 REPRESENTATIVE PYLE:  So my best 

 24 advice to a guy in Creekside, Washington 

 25 Township, Indiana County, is get down and make 
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  1 your application day one, minute one, if you 

  2 want to get to hunt in your backyard?

  3 MR. ROE:  And, again, there's some 

  4 wildlife management units, like 2G and 2F, 

  5 where the demand is probably two, two and a 

  6 half times what's available, and so it's still 

  7 that first come, first serve basis when it's 

  8 processed.

  9 REPRESENTATIVE PYLE:  Thank you.  

 10 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

 11 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Carl, just an 

 12 afterthought.  Earlier, when you described the 

 13 options that would be available in allocating 

 14 a doe tags, you mentioned the term "lottery."  

 15 Can you explain a little bit more detail just 

 16 how a lottery will work?  

 17 MR. ROE:  Again, the hunter, when 

 18 they buy their general hunting license, they 

 19 would put in their three WMUs preferences, 

 20 obviously one, two, or three by their choice, 

 21 and then you would just spin inside that 

 22 system.  

 23 Let's say, 2G for example, that has, 

 24 I believe -- is allocated twenty-two thousand, 

 25 something like that, right now, I think.  And 
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  1 there's probably a demand around sixty 

  2 thousand people want 2G.  And what we ensure, 

  3 during that first round, that you probably had 

  4 an equitable chance of getting 2G sometime 

  5 during that first round, based upon -- it's a 

  6 tough math problem.  It will be difficult to 

  7 build it, but it has -- the system has to be 

  8 equitable.  In a first come, first service 

  9 system, with all the Wal-Marts, we wouldn't 

 10 want two thousand people lined outside of 

 11 Wal-Mart trying to get there on a first come, 

 12 first serve basis on the first day we sell 

 13 general hunting licenses.

 14 So there has to be some way.  There 

 15 has to be a lottery, so it's equitable.

 16 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  So if I'm 

 17 understanding what you're saying, if you had a 

 18 management unit that never sold out in the 

 19 first wave, and a unit wound up with a bonus 

 20 round later on, an individual could be pretty 

 21 much ensured that when he applied for his doe 

 22 tag for that unit, he was going to get it.  He 

 23 would be okay with that.  

 24 But we have some wildlife management 

 25 units across the state that sell out rather 
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  1 quickly and not everybody receives one who 

  2 applies for one the first time out.

  3 MR. ROE:  Right.  Correct.

  4 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  So that is where 

  5 your lottery would work in areas like that?  

  6 MR. ROE:  And that would be my 

  7 concern, that there is an equitable chance 

  8 among all hunters, whether you do it from your 

  9 home on a home computer or you're doing it 

 10 in -- at one of our vendors in a private 

 11 establishment, that first round, there's 

 12 equitability in the first round, second round 

 13 to get their choices.

 14 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  So you would 

 15 know -- you would know the odds of the 

 16 differing wildlife management unit right now, 

 17 right, based upon the current numbers that you 

 18 have?

 19 MR. ROE:  To a certain degree.  It 

 20 would be a building process on the -- on the 

 21 odds, but historically, we've had almost twice 

 22 as many to two and a half times as many 

 23 applications for 2G than, in fact, there were 

 24 licenses a few years ago.  So let's say your 

 25 odds -- going into the system, that odds would 
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  1 be 2.5 to 1 that you would get it.

  2 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Okay.

  3 MR. ROE:  It is going -- it's a 

  4 complex math problem, it is, but something we 

  5 can figure out.

  6 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  So if you and I 

  7 were in line at the same vendor and I applied 

  8 for my doe tag, well, say to 2G, and I 

  9 received it, and you came behind me and you 

 10 applied for 2G, you may not get it.

 11 MR. ROE:  You may not get it.

 12 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Based on the odds 

 13 that you have built into the --

 14 MR. ROE:  Correct.

 15 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Thank you.

 16 Representative Haluska.  

 17 REPRESENTATIVE HALUSKA:  Thank you, 

 18 Mr. Chairman. 

 19 Carl, if I could, I'd just like to 

 20 read one of the letters that I received, and I 

 21 received numerous phone calls that maybe you 

 22 can comment after I read the letter on 

 23 probably what happened there.  

 24 This is a lady writing on behalf of 

 25 her father. 
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  1 (Reading letter.) I'm writing you 

  2 because recently my father's heart was broken.  

  3 He is 72 years old and has hunted his entire 

  4 life.  He has always abided by the rules and 

  5 regulations that the Pennsylvania Game 

  6 Commission has set forth, including the 

  7 standard procedure for purchasing a hunting 

  8 license.  This year he was denied an 

  9 antlerless deer license and the reason was 

 10 because the wildlife management unit that he 

 11 selected was sold out.  

 12 He has had the same routine for 

 13 sending his application for as long as I can 

 14 remember and has never been denied a license.  

 15 I remember as a child riding along with my dad 

 16 to the post office box in Ebensburg to mail 

 17 the application the night before they started 

 18 accepting applications.  

 19 This year was no different.  He 

 20 mailed his application the night of July 12th 

 21 so it would be sent on July 13, which was the 

 22 first day the applications were being 

 23 accepted.  About three weeks later, my dad 

 24 received his returned application, along with 

 25 a letter as to why he did not receive an 
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  1 antlerless deer license.  

  2 The returned application was 

  3 postmarked July 30th, which is where a lot of 

  4 the confusion comes into play.  Did they hold 

  5 the application for almost three weeks?  Were 

  6 there so many applications before my dad's 

  7 that the licenses were all sold out?  I know 

  8 the few people that sent their applications a 

  9 few days after my dad and they received their 

 10 antlerless deer licenses.  

 11 I can't help but feel my dad was 

 12 cheated out of a license.  He did resubmit the 

 13 application for a different wildlife 

 14 management unit but was again denied because 

 15 they were sold out as well.  This was 

 16 understandable, because at that point it was 

 17 August the 3rd.  The second application was 

 18 send out on August the 3rd, and that return 

 19 application as postmarked August the 12th, 

 20 which was a shorter turnover time.  

 21 After my dad was denied an antlerless 

 22 deer license the second time, he contacted the 

 23 county treasurer.  They directed him to the 

 24 Pennsylvania Game Commission, who then 

 25 directed him to you.  Thank you.  
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  1 At this point, he felt like he was 

  2 never going to get anywhere and lost hope.  

  3 That is why I stepped in.  I'm not sure what 

  4 you can do for my dad, but I would really like 

  5 to have some understanding to give him.  

  6 I'm enclosing both sets of the denied 

  7 applications to you for your review and truly 

  8 appreciate you taking time to read this letter 

  9 and will be very grateful for any insight that 

 10 you can give to my family.  (End of letter.)

 11 So, basically, he got his application 

 12 in Ebensburg and it goes to the courthouse.  

 13 It goes right to the courthouse, from the post 

 14 office to the courthouse, so they got it the 

 15 13th.  They sat on that thing for almost three 

 16 weeks before they sent it back.  Are the 

 17 county treasurers that busy that they can't 

 18 take care of business?  Or what's happening 

 19 here?

 20 MR. ROE:  I couldn't speak to the 

 21 specifics of that individual case or that 

 22 individual county treasurer.  What we can do 

 23 is, in fact, you can give it to us afterward 

 24 and we'll take a look at it.  If, in fact, he 

 25 would have received his first application that 
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  1 was denied earlier, then we can see if that 

  2 second application would have, in fact, gone 

  3 to a wildlife management.  If that wildlife 

  4 management was still open, we can probably 

  5 look at giving him the second application for 

  6 his antlerless license.  

  7 We'll have to look at the time lines 

  8 and when we were sold out and everything, but 

  9 we can certainly take a look at that.  

 10 REPRESENTATIVE HALUSKA:  Okay.  I'd 

 11 appreciate that.  

 12 That just calls my attention, and 

 13 I've had several phone calls and a couple 

 14 other letters that -- obviously, this system, 

 15 I think, could be really improved, and I agree 

 16 with you and I agree with a lot of other 

 17 people that it's just an antiquated system to 

 18 go to the county treasurers since we have the 

 19 PALS system working now, that we can do this, 

 20 we can figure out how to do a lottery and get 

 21 it done in a lot more -- how do I want it to 

 22 say it -- convincing method than filling these 

 23 applications out once and twice and sending 

 24 them in.  

 25 So that was my comment.  Thank you.
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  1 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  We have been 

  2 joined by two more members of our committee in 

  3 the likes of Representative DeLuca, up front 

  4 here, and Representative Gergely, on my left.  

  5 Representative Sonney.

  6 REPRESENTATIVE SONNEY:  Thank you, 

  7 Mr. Chairman. 

  8 Good morning, Carl.  If my memory 

  9 serves me right, before we went to the 

 10 wildlife management units, we always just sent 

 11 to our county treasurer for our doe permits 

 12 per county.

 13 MR. ROE:  Yes, that's correct.

 14 REPRESENTATIVE SONNEY:  And after the 

 15 wildlife management units, we would send them 

 16 to Harrisburg, and Harrisburg would count them 

 17 out and send them back to the county 

 18 treasurers to process.

 19 MR. ROE:  Yes.

 20 REPRESENTATIVE SONNEY:  So under that 

 21 system, only the correct number of permits for 

 22 that particular county or for that particular 

 23 management unit would be sent out.  In other 

 24 words, the county treasurer wouldn't have to 

 25 count them when they received them in 
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  1 Harrisburg.  They would get the correct 

  2 number, and Harrisburg would then send the 

  3 denials back.  Is that correct?  

  4 MR. ROE:  Yes.  As far as that goes, 

  5 we would build an allocation, based upon land 

  6 mass within the wildlife management unit, and 

  7 divide that percentage into the total 

  8 allocations for the wildlife management unit, 

  9 and the county would received that 

 10 allocation.  We would count them out in 

 11 Harrisburg, send them to the county treasurer, 

 12 and they would process -- they would verify 

 13 the number and would process the 

 14 applications. 

 15 REPRESENTATIVE SONNEY:  So this year, 

 16 then, we switched back to what -- more like 

 17 the system used to be.  In other words, we 

 18 send them directly to the county treasurer.

 19 MR. ROE:  In that sense --

 20 REPRESENTATIVE SONNEY:  They had to 

 21 count them.

 22 MR. ROE:  In that sense, yes, in that 

 23 they had to count them out as they did before.  

 24 They had to count and verify before and let us 

 25 know.  But the difference is, they have the 
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  1 ability to sell all wildlife managements.  

  2 Before, they were limited in their sales.  

  3 REPRESENTATIVE SONNEY:  And you said, 

  4 with the ability this year to be able to go on 

  5 a computer and look to see if you were -- if 

  6 your application was accepted instead of 

  7 waiting for your check, so in other words, the 

  8 county treasurers, then, were supposed to 

  9 count these out and log in the person into the 

 10 system?  

 11 MR. ROE:  It automatically -- when 

 12 you put in the customer identification number, 

 13 you checked the wildlife management units that 

 14 are available, and the computer says yes or no 

 15 on the availability, then you print out a 

 16 license once one's available.  And that's all 

 17 automated, goes into the system.  

 18 REPRESENTATIVE SONNEY:  But there's 

 19 no specific time line that they're required to 

 20 do this by?  

 21 MR. ROE:  They're required to have 

 22 them sold and the first round mailed out in, I 

 23 believe, the middle of September, I believe, 

 24 the 15th of September.  It depends upon the 

 25 year.  But they have a requirement to mail 
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  1 them out by that point in time.  

  2 Ideally, if you're -- if you consider 

  3 it a business as a first come, first serve 

  4 basis and they're all competing for the same 

  5 pool, it's important to start processing them 

  6 immediately.  

  7 REPRESENTATIVE SONNEY:  I know this 

  8 year my oldest son mailed mine and his in 

  9 separate envelopes but put them in the mail 

 10 the same day.  For some reason, his went to a 

 11 different county treasurer than mine did, and 

 12 he received his about five weeks before I 

 13 received mine.  And we both received the same 

 14 wildlife management unit, which was our number 

 15 one choice.  So I was a little confused on how 

 16 his was sent to a different county treasurer, 

 17 but, on top of that, it was a little 

 18 disheartening that he received notice back 

 19 rather quickly and I waited -- by the time I 

 20 got mine, I would never have had a chance to 

 21 apply for a different license.  

 22 MR. ROE:  I will say, in your 

 23 specific area, that's where we had a big 

 24 problem.  And the reason why I went -- one of 

 25 yours went to another county treasurer, 
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  1 because we said -- after a while, it was -- it 

  2 was obvious that person wasn't being able to 

  3 process the volume he had.  So that's when 

  4 we -- I think it was two days after we 

  5 discovered he wasn't selling them right away, 

  6 we told him to send them out to other county 

  7 treasurers who were willing to assist at that 

  8 point in time, and that's why your application 

  9 or your son's application went to another 

 10 county treasurer to get processed.

 11 Ideally, it should have been 

 12 processed in the first two or three days in 

 13 that county.  

 14 REPRESENTATIVE SONNEY:  But rules, 

 15 then, really only require a treasurer to put 

 16 these things in the mail at a certain time.  

 17 They have no real requirement to begin 

 18 processing.

 19 MR. ROE:  No.  But this -- the volume 

 20 that they get, historically, they begin 

 21 processing right away, because it is a 

 22 customer service environment, and even now, if 

 23 you're mailing -- most people are mailing it 

 24 within their own counties, it's not only a 

 25 customer, it's a constituent issue.  
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  1 So it was county treasurer's office 

  2 to process them as quickly as possible and try 

  3 to fulfill as many as those first choices as 

  4 possible.  

  5 REPRESENTATIVE SONNEY:  I just have 

  6 one follow-up question on the lottery system  

  7 that we're talking about.  Under that type of 

  8 system, when someone would go down, they would 

  9 be purchasing their hunting license.  At that 

 10 time they would say, yes, I would like a doe 

 11 permit.  Is that correct?  

 12 MR. ROE:  Um-hum.  

 13 REPRESENTATIVE SONNEY:  And they 

 14 would then be -- the vendor would say, which 

 15 units would you like, first, second, third 

 16 choice, and that would be given that lottery 

 17 system.  

 18 Now, let's just say that, you know, I 

 19 wouldn't get my license, and I'd say, you 

 20 know, I really only want this one.  I'm not 

 21 going to give you a second and third choice, 

 22 because I don't want one, I just want this 

 23 one.  And I'm denied.  Do I have the ability 

 24 to apply again at any time and try it again?  

 25 MR. ROE:  That's one of the things we 
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  1 would have to work out.  And I would offer 

  2 that during a first round environment, the 

  3 answer would be no.  You have to wait for a 

  4 second round to apply for a second round tag.  

  5 That's the chances of a lottery.  

  6 I mean, it's the same system now, to 

  7 a certain degree.  If you have fifty-some 

  8 thousand people applying for twenty-two 

  9 thousand antlerless licenses in 2G, some will 

 10 get them and some won't get them.  It's a 

 11 challenge.  

 12 I will -- my staff's going to kill me 

 13 before this morning's out, but one of the real 

 14 challenges is that it's batching these.  

 15 Suppose you and your son came in and you 

 16 wanted under the same WMU.  Would there be a 

 17 way we could batch those requests together so 

 18 you would hunt together and have some kind of 

 19 a success in getting that?  Would that be 

 20 another permutation and selection within the 

 21 system?  We'd probably have to work out.  

 22 Because now, as you mail them, you can mail, 

 23 as you know, up to three in an envelope, and 

 24 you're -- they're processed together and 

 25 batched together for the most part.  That's 
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  1 something that we have to work into the system 

  2 also.  

  3 It's going to be a complicated 

  4 problem, no doubt.  

  5 REPRESENTATIVE SONNEY:  How long do 

  6 you think it would take to implement that kind 

  7 of system?  

  8 MR. ROE:  Once the law's changed, 

  9 probably about another year or so.  We think 

 10 we can get it done within a year.  

 11 REPRESENTATIVE SONNEY:  Okay.  Thank 

 12 you.  

 13 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

 14 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Representative 

 15 Peifer.

 16 REPRESENTATIVE PEIFER:  Thank you, 

 17 Mr. Chairman.  

 18 And thank you, Carl.  

 19 What happens, Carl, to the fee in the 

 20 situation if it goes over to the county?  

 21 Where does that fee go to?

 22 MR. ROE:  The dollar vendor fee?  

 23 REPRESENTATIVE PEIFER:  Correct.  

 24 MR. ROE:  It goes to the individual 

 25 vendor, whether that be Row's Bait and Tackle 
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  1 or Wal-Mart or county treasurer.  

  2 REPRESENTATIVE PEIFER:  Okay.  So 

  3 this year's allocation, eight hundred seventy 

  4 thousand doe licenses, it looks like on the 

  5 website, I think, that you sold around eight 

  6 hundred twenty-three thousand to date.  So 

  7 eight hundred twenty-three thousand dollars 

  8 stays locally, right now, in our county 

  9 treasurer's office; correct?  

 10 MR. ROE:  That's correct.

 11 REPRESENTATIVE PEIFER:  In your 

 12 situation, we sell over the counter, 

 13 essentially we're going to lose whatever 

 14 revenue that they don't sell.  

 15 MR. ROE:  Correct.

 16 REPRESENTATIVE PEIFER:  The issue 

 17 that I have, as a former county treasurer, I 

 18 can tell you that there are examples here 

 19 today where there's always glitches and 

 20 problems that occur.  But most county 

 21 treasurers do a great job and take great pride 

 22 because it's part of their job to complete the 

 23 license, to mail it back on time.  

 24 And I can tell you that I always did 

 25 argue with the county treasurers because we 
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  1 wouldn't mail them at the same time.  My first 

  2 year as a county treasurer, I think I started 

  3 like 6 o'clock on a Monday morning.  I had a 

  4 batch of licenses there.  I worked Monday 

  5 night till 9 o'clock, Tuesday night till 9 

  6 o'clock, Wednesday night till 9 o'clock, 

  7 Thursday night till 9 o'clock, and I mailed 

  8 six, seven, eight, ten thousand out on 

  9 Friday.  And I had thank you letters from 

 10 people saying, Gee, Mike, thanks.  I know that 

 11 I had my first round.  My check cleared on 

 12 time.  There's no waiting.  I received it in a 

 13 timely fashion.  Thank you for doing your 

 14 job.  

 15 And I always tried to convince the 

 16 county treasurers to go along with that, 

 17 either just mail them -- get your job done, 

 18 don't hold checks, get your job done, tell 

 19 people right away.  There is no problem.  

 20 Now, the issue was bad checks.  And I 

 21 can tell you that I took a risk.  If I had bad 

 22 checks, I couldn't hunt down people -- 

 23 typically, I'd almost always collect the 

 24 money.  You know, it was -- when someone 

 25 mailed a bad check, it was -- they're very 
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  1 sorry, but it wasn't a big deal.  If I had bad 

  2 checks and my reports needed to go out, I 

  3 would reach into my pocket, just like I'm 

  4 giving my COLA back to this Commonwealth, I 

  5 would reach out into my pocket and grab that 

  6 seventy-eight dollars for those three 

  7 nonresidents that had bad checks, to make my 

  8 reports work.  And I just felt it was the cost 

  9 of doing business.  

 10 It seems to me, if we just change the 

 11 process within the treasurers and work with 

 12 them and say, Look, we need to process them 

 13 sooner so we're not sitting on checks.  We can 

 14 get them out to people.  If they don't get 

 15 their license, they can apply somewhere else.  

 16 Do you have any thoughts on that?

 17 MR. ROE:  We've always had a great 

 18 relationship with the county treasurers, and 

 19 they're an important part of us issuing the 

 20 antlerless licenses.  In the past, that's 

 21 probably the only way we could, in fact, issue 

 22 antlerless licenses in that volume in that 

 23 short a period of time.  And the question 

 24 becomes:  Is automation a way to, in fact, do 

 25 that more efficiently in the future?  
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  1 At the same time, as you well know, 

  2 of the sixty-six members of the County 

  3 Treasurers Association, there's probably 

  4 sixty-six different ways people approach that 

  5 job.  You described how you do it, but it 

  6 would not be -- it would not be atypical, I 

  7 don't think, but I think the county treasurers 

  8 have different priorities at different times 

  9 of the year, and they tackle this 

 10 differently.  And they'll be able to speak to 

 11 that much better than I can.

 12 REPRESENTATIVE PEIFER:  I just see -- 

 13 you know, when I would go to the post office 

 14 and I would see the boxes of doe licenses, and 

 15 I'm from Pike County, so it's Wayne County and 

 16 the northeast region.  Hunting is just part of 

 17 our tradition, part of our heritage, so it's a 

 18 big event. 

 19 But I don't know how John's Bait 

 20 Shop's going to handle five thousand people 

 21 standing there on a Monday morning.  I mean, 

 22 one, I can't take off work Monday, Tuesday, 

 23 Wednesday to stand in line at Wal-Mart or to 

 24 camp out like a college football game.  I'm 

 25 not going to camp out on a Sunday night just 
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  1 to get a license.  And these people are 

  2 fanatical enough to do that because it's 

  3 important.  

  4 The economy's tough.  They need their 

  5 doe licenses.  It's important to their 

  6 families.  And I don't know that any store is 

  7 going to have enough staff at their one 

  8 computer terminal to process five thousand doe 

  9 licenses in two days.  

 10 So, I mean, I understand what you're 

 11 trying to do, but I don't know how you're 

 12 going to get rid of that Black Friday effect, 

 13 because I think people are going to stand in 

 14 line.  It's just going to be -- clog the whole 

 15 system.  

 16 I mean, I've heard dribs and drabs of 

 17 negative comments about how the treasurer's 

 18 antiquated, but, frankly, it's very reliable.  

 19 It's a control environment.  And I'll tell 

 20 you, from a county standpoint, we rely on 

 21 those fees.  And if you're going to take this 

 22 fee away from Pike County and Wayne County and 

 23 Monroe County, then as county treasurer, I'm 

 24 going to call the Department of Ag, and I'm 

 25 going to say, You know what, why don't you get 
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  1 your dog licenses -- I'm speaking for myself, 

  2 I'm not speaking for anyone else -- why don't 

  3 you take your dog license and get rid of them, 

  4 because I've lost my fees that are generated 

  5 from the doe licenses.  I've lost my fees from 

  6 the hunting licenses.  I'm going to -- I don't 

  7 have the money to pay staff to staff a window 

  8 or go be a clerk to staff a window during the 

  9 week, so I'm going have to get rid of those 

 10 doe licenses.  I'm going to have the 

 11 Department of Ag sell their own.  

 12 So I think this is -- and I know we 

 13 have nothing to do with tag if you're the Game 

 14 Commission, separate entity, but the county 

 15 treasurer does a lot within the confines of 

 16 the state.  They've always worked well with 

 17 us, and I'm not sure that we want to take this 

 18 revenue away from them.

 19 MR. ROE:  That's one of the elements 

 20 of the decision process you'll obviously have 

 21 to address.  

 22 As far as standing in line, that's 

 23 the purpose of the lottery system as opposed 

 24 to first come, first serve.  If it was first 

 25 come, first serve, then you would worry about 

41



  1 thousand of people, but if you have equal 

  2 chance on the last day of the first round to 

  3 receive a license or the area as you did the 

  4 first day, so --

  5 REPRESENTATIVE PEIFER:  So say I camp 

  6 out at Wal-Mart for -- they're going to be 

  7 issued on Monday.  I'm going to camp out on 

  8 Saturday and Sunday.  I'm going to camp out 

  9 right next to it.  I'm going to stand in line 

 10 for two full days, and I show up on Monday 

 11 morning.  I'm the second person in line, and 

 12 they say, Sorry.  You received your doe 

 13 license last year.  In the lottery, you're not 

 14 going to get one this year.  Could that 

 15 happen?

 16 MR. ROE:  No.  You would go in, you'd 

 17 put your first three choices in, and you would 

 18 get one of those.

 19 REPRESENTATIVE PEIFER:  I don't want 

 20 choices.  I have a camp in 3C or 3F or 

 21 whatever it is.  I have a camp.  My uncle owns 

 22 property there, and I own property there.  I'm 

 23 not going to go anywhere else in this 

 24 commonwealth to hunt.  That's where I hunt.  

 25 If I can't go there, would that 

42



  1 have -- if I was the second person in line, 

  2 could it happen in a lottery, that I would not 

  3 receive a license?

  4 MR. ROE:  Yes.

  5 REPRESENTATIVE PEIFER:  So if I take 

  6 two days off from work and stand in line for 

  7 two days, and I work -- I change all my 

  8 schedule around for two days, and I stand 

  9 there, and they show up and say, I'm sorry.  

 10 You're the second person in line.  You stood 

 11 here forever, but since you had a license last 

 12 year and the year before, this year you don't.

 13 MR. ROE:  It has nothing to do with 

 14 previous years.  It's an instant lottery each 

 15 year.  And there would be no reason to stand 

 16 in line because it's equitable from day one to 

 17 day thirty.  You have an equal chance of 

 18 receiving a license in the wildlife management 

 19 unit during that period of time, based upon 

 20 whatever -- 

 21 REPRESENTATIVE PEIFER:  So whatever 

 22 day I feel lucky, I should just show up, and 

 23 hopefully there's not a long line, I'll just 

 24 show up and take a chance.

 25 MR. ROE:  It's taking a chance within 
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  1 the system, which is basically the same now.  

  2 I would offer that you take a chance now.  By 

  3 getting an envelope, filling out an 

  4 application, putting a stamp on it and mailing 

  5 it to a county treasurer, you take a chance on 

  6 how fast that's processed within the 

  7 allocation.  You may or may not receive your 

  8 antlerless license.

  9 REPRESENTATIVE PEIFER:  But if I do 

 10 my due diligence and know that my management 

 11 unit has so many thousand licenses, and I do 

 12 it on time, chances are, barring snags that we 

 13 hear -- we know that, we hear the snags, we 

 14 hear about them -- chances are, if I do my due 

 15 diligence, and I do my work, and I mail it on 

 16 time, I'm almost guaranteed a license.

 17 MR. ROE:  Well, it depends upon your 

 18 wildlife management unit.  I would say there's 

 19 several -- you're almost guaranteed in the 

 20 first round, regardless.

 21 REPRESENTATIVE PEIFER:  Right.

 22 MR. ROE:  That's one thing we wanted 

 23 to take a look at.  There's some that are 

 24 absolutely guaranteed in the first round.  5C, 

 25 2B, 5D, looks likes 2A now.  You -- we're 
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  1 still over -- we're doing -- over-the-counter 

  2 is still available.  And we would look at when 

  3 those licenses sold out, and those that didn't 

  4 sell out the first round, you can almost be 

  5 guaranteed your first choice among those 

  6 wildlife management units in the first round. 

  7 And that's how we would look at it, 

  8 in the sense of, let's say, 3C, for example,  

  9 we didn't sell out until the bonus round.  So 

 10 if you apply for 3C during the first round, we 

 11 would know during the first round.  You're 

 12 almost a hundred percent sure of getting 3C in 

 13 a lottery system, because we never sell out 

 14 the first round.  

 15 And I mean, it's going to be a very 

 16 complicated math problem.  We're going to have 

 17 to go back and do some research on sales and 

 18 when, in fact, that wildlife management unit 

 19 sold out.  So if we exceeded the demand on the 

 20 first round, meaning you're available for the 

 21 bonus, then you're almost guaranteed that in 

 22 the first round.  

 23 2G being a different story, being the 

 24 most complicated one, where the demand's 

 25 almost two- to three-to-one being issued.  
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  1 That provides more of a lottery environment.  

  2 I hope I explained that well enough to -- 

  3 REPRESENTATIVE PEIFER:  I think it's 

  4 a very complex situation, which brings us to 

  5 another one.  If there's so much need, maybe 

  6 you should be auctioning them off and trying 

  7 to raise more money for the Game Commission.  

  8 And I feel better -- I would feel 

  9 better if this revenue was staying locally, 

 10 even going to you, okay?  If I took Pike 

 11 County's sixteen thousand, whatever it is, for 

 12 doe licenses, I'd feel better if it was going 

 13 to the Game Commission or my county treasurer, 

 14 instead of some other, you know, business 

 15 corporate America outside of Pennsylvania.  

 16 That's my point. 

 17 MR. ROE:  There's no doubt that the 

 18 large stores do sell a good portion of our 

 19 licenses, but over 50 percent are still sold 

 20 locally. 

 21 REPRESENTATIVE PEIFER:  Thank you.

 22 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Representative 

 23 DeLuca.

 24 REPRESENTATIVE DELUCA:  Thank you, 

 25 Mr. Chairman.  
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  1 Good morning, Carl.  

  2 MR. ROE:  Good morning.

  3 REPRESENTATIVE DELUCA:  Let me -- and 

  4 maybe this is not an appropriate question for 

  5 you.  Have you had much trouble with people 

  6 calling up and saying that the checks have 

  7 been in the treasurer's office, they have not 

  8 been cashing their checks on time, and they 

  9 delay it, and delays getting the application 

 10 out because of clearance of the check?  Have 

 11 you ever had any complaints like that?

 12 MR. ROE:  Probably more - probably a 

 13 better question for one of the county 

 14 treasurers.  But, absolutely, I know as 

 15 part -- some of them hold on to the licenses 

 16 to make sure the check has cleared before they 

 17 mail the license out.  That means they might 

 18 be stacked for a while before they process.  

 19 I'm not sure how each individual county 

 20 treasurer does it, but we get calls on that.  

 21 And that was one of the reasons why 

 22 we thought it was important to alleviate some 

 23 of the pressure from them on those phone calls 

 24 as well as us, is to have that system on 

 25 the -- on line where you can go in and see 
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  1 when it was issued to you.  That doesn't make 

  2 any difference whether the check has cleared 

  3 or not, you got issued that antlerless 

  4 license, and you can find that out on our 

  5 website.

  6 REPRESENTATIVE DELUCA:  The other 

  7 concern I have, and probably -- I don't know 

  8 if you will be able to answer.  I'll ask the 

  9 county treasurer.  But the fact is that -- in 

 10 these economic tough times, a lot of the 

 11 counties are cutting down on staff, so that's 

 12 certainly going to delay the process, isn't 

 13 it, if you have less staff?

 14 MR. ROE:  If they cut staff when they 

 15 issue the antlerless license, it will slow 

 16 down the process.  Yes, if that's their choice 

 17 to do that.  

 18 REPRESENTATIVE DELUCA:  I mean, a lot 

 19 of counties are cutting down on staff because 

 20 of the economic times.  So --

 21 MR. ROE:  I would assume that.  I 

 22 mean -- 

 23 REPRESENTATIVE DELUCA:  So, I mean, 

 24 that would create a problem.

 25 MR. ROE:  That could delay the 
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  1 processing, for sure.  

  2 REPRESENTATIVE DELUCA:  Thank you. 

  3 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

  4 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Representative 

  5 Pyle.

  6 REPRESENTATIVE PYLE:  Thank you, Mr.  

  7 Chairman.  

  8 Director Roe, I listened to all the 

  9 discussion that's going on here.  It would 

 10 seem to me that when I -- I need, I guess, 

 11 clearer definition of what you're calling an 

 12 "instant" system.  Armstrong and Indiana's 

 13 deer herd is very, very strong.  But I don't 

 14 know why it isn't possible, given the level of 

 15 technology involved in on-line systems and 

 16 easily accessible, why we don't have a real-

 17 time running count on applications.  To apply 

 18 one morning at 10:00 a.m. and be told there 

 19 are licenses available, only to find out the 

 20 next day, because of computer lag, there would 

 21 seem to me that the applicant has somehow been 

 22 misled.  And just, you know, trying to solve 

 23 problems that maybe don't exist, common 

 24 technologies for real-time access to that 

 25 number of doe licenses is out there.  
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  1 And I think these situations where, 

  2 you know, Rep. Peifer applies to go hunting at 

  3 his camp and the computer shows that they're 

  4 available, but the next day the rug gets 

  5 pulled out and he doesn't have one.  I think 

  6 those are a problem.

  7 MR. ROE:  Yes.  I'm not --

  8 REPRESENTATIVE PYLE:  That's just a 

  9 suggestion.  

 10 Second, with the statewide opening of 

 11 this thing, I think it's created somewhat of a 

 12 Wild West effect, where people from far, far, 

 13 far out of our regions can buy up all our doe 

 14 licenses, and the guys that live there can't 

 15 go shoot the deer that's been walking around 

 16 in his backyard for four months.  

 17 I've got to admit, Mr. Chairman, I'm 

 18 really open on this discussion.  I'm looking 

 19 forward to hearing what the county treasurers 

 20 have to say, because I do, in one aspect, feel 

 21 that that local access to those permits, you 

 22 know, granted you're not going to shoot a lot 

 23 of bucks in Philadelphia city, okay, but you 

 24 can go shoot a lot of them out in Armstrong.  

 25 Do I want busloads of Philadelphia hunters 
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  1 trucking across the state to come decimate our 

  2 deer herd?  No, not really.  But I'm willing 

  3 to listen to more of this.  

  4 And I would encourage you to get your 

  5 IT guys looking at the lag time issue on a 

  6 permit.  A day's lag, that just doesn't work.

  7 MR. ROE:  And we will take a look at 

  8 that.  That's one of the things we had talked 

  9 about a little bit.  It's probably -- we 

 10 probably bounced that number off the 

 11 replicated database, and that database is 

 12 replicated every twenty-four from Nashville.  

 13 There's -- I'm not sure if there's a 

 14 way we can get an instant cut up there to be 

 15 able to do that, to keep those number more 

 16 current.  So that's probably -- we can figure 

 17 it --

 18 REPRESENTATIVE PYLE:  It would 

 19 prevent a lot of false hopes, alleviate a lot 

 20 of problems also.

 21 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

 22 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  We have been 

 23 joined by another member of our committee in 

 24 the likes of Representative Kevin Murphy from 

 25 Lackawanna County, to my right.
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  1 Representative Gergely.

  2 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Thank you, 

  3 Mr. Chairman.  

  4 You said 50 percent are still sold in 

  5 mom-and-pop sporting goods stores?  

  6 MR. ROE:  Roughly between 40 and 45 

  7 percent are sold by Wal-Mart, K-Mart, et 

  8 cetera.  Isn't that a rough number?

  9 UNIDENTIFIED MALE:  Yes.

 10 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  

 11 Pragmatically, then, Black Fridays, if the 

 12 sporting goods stores actually marketed 

 13 themselves, more dollars would be spent in 

 14 that county if those sportsmen had to go 

 15 there.  It's not such a bad idea, I'm saying, 

 16 why you actually have to go to a sporting 

 17 goods shop on a day in the middle of summer.  

 18 I mean, most likely, probably wouldn't.  Have 

 19 some sales, have some summer sales, kick-off 

 20 sales.  That might be a good idea, not such a 

 21 bad idea, because selling to the county 

 22 treasurer's office generates no money for 

 23 sporting goods stores.

 24 MR. ROE:  That's --

 25 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  For everyone 
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  1 here to consider.  There's a lot to that.  

  2 Plus, I live in Allegheny County.  We 

  3 have to pay to park to go to our county 

  4 treasurer.  There's no -- there's no -- 

  5 nothing advantageous, living in Allegheny 

  6 County, to go buy a doe tag.  Trust me.  It's 

  7 the biggest hassle in the world.  You actually  

  8 drive around in a circle around the courthouse 

  9 until you get your doe tags purchased.  Unlike 

 10 many other counties, this is pretty much -- we 

 11 never sell out, to be honest, and I think a 

 12 lot of it is access.

 13 Now, Mr. Roe, over the Internet, can 

 14 you explain that more?  Folks that wouldn't -- 

 15 didn't have to go to a store, they could buy 

 16 their doe tags over the Internet when they buy 

 17 their license; correct?  

 18 MR. ROE:  Correct.  It would be the 

 19 same system.  You would apply for three WMUs 

 20 in the instant lottery, and it would be either 

 21 the Internet or in person at a store.

 22 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  So the 

 23 necessity of having to drive somewhere, as a 

 24 lot of my colleagues were saying, doesn't 

 25 really exist if you have access to the 
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  1 Internet?

  2 MR. ROE:  The Internet system would 

  3 be the same as it would be at a vendor in a 

  4 store.  

  5 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Just like 

  6 you buy the license now.  

  7 MR. ROE:  Correct.  

  8 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  And just out 

  9 of curiosity, today, a snapshot of license 

 10 sales is what for the Game Commission?

 11 MR. ROE:  Antlerless deer or across 

 12 the board?  

 13 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  No.  I know 

 14 we have instantaneous numbers, so you know 

 15 today how many resident-- adult resident 

 16 hunting licenses have been sold.   

 17 MR. ROE:  I only look at that about 

 18 monthly, to be honest with you.  I just don't 

 19 pay that much attention to those.  You can't 

 20 influence the action, but we usually, in the 

 21 end of the year -- 

 22 Dot, do you have those handy by any 

 23 chance?  No?

 24 I can get those to you.

 25 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  But I should 
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  1 be able to ask that; correct?

  2 MR. ROE:  Oh, absolutely.  We can get 

  3 it to you as of ten minutes ago, when I get 

  4 back to the office. 

  5 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  It goes with 

  6 the previous debates of information sharing.  

  7 We have had a big problem within the state.  

  8 Has antler -- I mean, archery sales gone up 

  9 this year?  It'd be interesting for this 

 10 committee to know.

 11 MR. ROE:  As I recall, they have not 

 12 gone up this year.  As a matter of fact, 

 13 there's a little bit less than last year at 

 14 this time, but we're comparing the two 

 15 different systems, unfortunately.  

 16 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  But we could 

 17 ask that question, though.

 18 MR. ROE:  In the future, we will be 

 19 able to compare day-to-day, if you want to. 

 20 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  So we would 

 21 know how many doe tags are sold on opening -- 

 22 on July 1st, I guess, would be the first 

 23 available -- 

 24 MR. ROE:  Well, we open general 

 25 license on 15 June, like we did this year, it 
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  1 would be 15 June.  

  2 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  It's 

  3 pragmatic for me.  It makes sense.  Fifty 

  4 cents to the treasurer versus the ability for 

  5 our stores to have merchandise sales for the 

  6 consumer, that those -- our hunting license 

  7 buyer does not have to worry.  

  8 Our guys -- sorry, Representative 

  9 Pyle -- our guys don't have the big woods and 

 10 the hunting camp in Allegheny County.  We do 

 11 go to places.  We want to have access to your 

 12 county, to Forest County, to Warren County.

 13 REPRESENTATIVE PYLE:  I'm sure you 

 14 do.  

 15 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  But guess 

 16 what, so do your store owners.  They want us 

 17 to come there too.  They want us to spend our 

 18 dollars there, so that's not so bad either. 

 19 So I will be continuing to have this 

 20 discussion.  

 21 Thank you.

 22 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Are there any 

 23 other questions of Executive Director Roe?  

 24 If not, Carl, thank you very much for 

 25 being here today.  We appreciate the manner in 

56



  1 which you feel, the questions that were posed 

  2 to you.  We, as a committee, appreciate the 

  3 manner which you handle yourself.  

  4 One again, thank you for being here.

  5 MR. ROE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

  6 Thank you all.  

  7 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Our second 

  8 testifier is Mr. Craig Ebersole, president of 

  9 the County Treasurer's Association.  Craig is 

 10 here representing that organization and is a 

 11 county treasurer himself in Lancaster County.  

 12 Craig, welcome.  Make yourself 

 13 comfortable.  And you can begin your testimony 

 14 whenever you're ready.

 15 MR. EBERSOLE:  Thank you, 

 16 Mr. Chairman.

 17 It is my privilege to represent the 

 18 County Treasurer's Association of 

 19 Pennsylvania, sixty-five of our sixty-seven 

 20 counties are member counties.  Thank you for 

 21 allowing us to have a voice at this hearing 

 22 this morning.  

 23 As all of you know, this is the first 

 24 year for the Pennsylvania Game Commission to 

 25 sell hunting and trapping licenses via point-
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  1 of-sale methodology and the first year to sell 

  2 antlerless license via a pooled system that 

  3 allowed any hunter living anywhere in the 

  4 commonwealth to apply to any county treasurer 

  5 to hunt in any wildlife management unit, 

  6 commonly known as a WMU.  

  7 For example, a hunter could live in 

  8 Warren County, send his application to Monroe 

  9 County, seeking to hunt in a WMU that might 

 10 include Franklin County.  In previous years, 

 11 the Game Commission issued allocations for 

 12 each WMU, and county treasurers would receive 

 13 an allocation of that WMU based upon a 

 14 percentage of that particular WMU within their 

 15 county borders.  

 16 County treasurers were facing a new 

 17 challenge this license season.  No one could 

 18 predict with any effective knowledge how many 

 19 applications a particular county would 

 20 receive.  Would hunters apply to the county or 

 21 WMU where they wanted to hunt, or would they 

 22 send their application to the county of 

 23 residence, seeking to hunt virtually across 

 24 the commonwealth?  

 25 We can answer that question today.  
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  1 About 90 percent or over 90 percent of them 

  2 sent their application to the county 

  3 treasurer's office in the county of the 

  4 applicant's residency.  

  5 So how did it go?  Well, it's a 

  6 brand-new system, and in many respects it went 

  7 as one might expect a brand-new system to go.  

  8 The first two or three days were a learning 

  9 curve, but that was quickly followed by 

 10 applications being processed more efficiently 

 11 and less costly than via the previous 

 12 methodology.  We saved time and thus money.

 13 The Pennsylvania Game Commission did 

 14 not need to hire temporary staff to receive 

 15 hundreds of thousands of applications here in 

 16 Harrisburg and repackage them to be sent to 

 17 the county treasurers.  Hunters called us more 

 18 often than in previous years because now they 

 19 actually knew where they sent their 

 20 application.  Previously, when they mailed it 

 21 to only a WMU, it might have gone to any of 

 22 five or six counties within that WMU of 

 23 choice.  They made less in previous years 

 24 because they had no idea where to call.  

 25 The single largest issue the county 
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  1 treasurers dealt with this year, that's easy 

  2 to tell you.  It was the poor quality of the 

  3 pink envelopes, in particular, their lack of 

  4 glue.  We did our little part to help the 

  5 economy by purchasing and using literally 

  6 miles and miles of Scotch tape.  But the PGC 

  7 is aware of the issue.  We have discussed it 

  8 with them and they will address it with their 

  9 vendor going forward.

 10 Was there an issue with one or two 

 11 counties who were severely understaffed and, 

 12 thus, failed a work on the applications from 

 13 the first day?  Yes.  And neighboring county 

 14 treasurers, after receiving permission from 

 15 the PGC, jumped in and resolved those issues.  

 16 We are county treasurers, so let me 

 17 spend a moment on the financial component of 

 18 antlerless licensing.  For many, many years, 

 19 we have been paid a dollar to process and 

 20 issue each antlerless license, or what I 

 21 affectionately call being paid a buck for each 

 22 doe.  We have not appeared before you seeking 

 23 an increase, nor have we attempted to have the 

 24 law changed to allow us to exit the business.  

 25 We will do our job.  
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  1 We, like all of you, think of our 

  2 hunters as both a customer and a constituent.  

  3 Our association met only last week with 

  4 Mr. Carl Roe and his staff for about ninety 

  5 minutes.  We discussed system improvements and 

  6 various tweaking of the system that we feel 

  7 will be good for the hunter, the PGC, and the 

  8 staff of county treasurers.  

  9 Minor system changes will allow us to 

 10 be more efficient and should allow the PGC to 

 11 keep our selling fee to the hunter where it 

 12 has been for those decades.  

 13 Now, let's talk about the eight-

 14 hundred-pound gorilla in the room, the 

 15 one-stop shop.  There is a certain big 

 16 box-type store in our state that sells more 

 17 hunting licenses than anybody else, and that's 

 18 a fact.  

 19 Saturday, before we were to begin 

 20 accepting antlerless applications, I stopped 

 21 by the big box store in my neighborhood and 

 22 quitely stood in the sporting goods department 

 23 as an observer.  They had a single license 

 24 terminal available for use.  And during the 

 25 hour or so that I observed their sales 
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  1 counter, the numbers of hunters waiting in 

  2 that line varied between nineteen and twenty-

  3 four.  Not exactly the level or quality of 

  4 service our constituents should accept.  

  5 And with every license sale, the 

  6 money from the sales commission on that 

  7 license left our state and went to a corporate 

  8 office somewhere in the Ozarks.  We would ask 

  9 you, please, don't take sales commission 

 10 dollars from counties in the commonwealth and 

 11 send them out of state.  

 12 County treasurers don't sell 

 13 clothing.  We don't sell televisions.  We 

 14 don't sell groceries.  We sell licenses for 

 15 the Pennsylvania Game Commission, for the 

 16 Pennsylvania Fish and Boat Commission, and for 

 17 the Pennsylvania Department of Agriculture, 

 18 Bureau of Dog Law Enforcement.  We have a well 

 19 established relationship with those who hunt, 

 20 fish, trap, or own a dog.  

 21 We have and we will continue to go 

 22 the second mile with our sportsmen.  Over the 

 23 years, county treasurers across the 

 24 commonwealth have issued literally tens of 

 25 millions of antlerless and doe permits, 
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  1 resulting in tens of millions of dollars going 

  2 to the general fund in those counties.  

  3 This is simply the wrong time to 

  4 consider moving money away from those local 

  5 governments.  County treasurers remain 

  6 committed to being a partner with our 

  7 hunters.  

  8 On behalf the County Treasurer's 

  9 Association, I thank you, again, for the 

 10 opportunity to be a part of this ongoing 

 11 dialogue.  And I will attempt to answer any 

 12 questions you have.  

 13 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

 14 CHAIRMAN STABACK.  Thank you very 

 15 much for your testimony, Craig.  You certainly 

 16 touched on a lot of things that I thought 

 17 needed answering before the committee hearing 

 18 started.  

 19 Tell me, are you satisfied with the 

 20 cooperation that you had with the Game 

 21 Commission in dealing with the new process?  

 22 MR. EBERSOLE:  Not totally, but it's 

 23 been resolved.  At our spring meeting -- we 

 24 have a spring one-day conference and a fall 

 25 one-day conference.  And at our spring one-day 
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  1 conference, I had expressed a concern that we 

  2 actually should develop a plan B.  

  3 We have no idea if a courthouse is 

  4 going to burn down.  I'm not being facetious, 

  5 but there should be a plan B of:  If this 

  6 happens, we then do this.  They would not 

  7 speak to or address or even contemplate plan 

  8 B.  And so when there was an issue in Erie 

  9 County, there was no plan B, and that helped 

 10 to exacerbate your problem.  

 11 The other small thing that was going 

 12 on was the seventy-cent license issue -- 

 13 seventy-cent fee, I shouldn't say license, 

 14 fee, whether that needed to be a legislative 

 15 change, because it was in the hopper, as you 

 16 all know, or whether that had to be a policy 

 17 change.  We felt it needed to be a legislative 

 18 change.  We weren't comfortable charging that 

 19 fee and taking that fee until it would become 

 20 law.  And we had some serious disagreements 

 21 over that.  

 22 Subsequent to that, no one from the 

 23 entire Pennsylvania Game Commission was 

 24 available to come to our summer conference in 

 25 the Poconos.  That was quite disheartening 
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  1 that there was no rep available to come.  

  2 As Mr. Roe told you -- a week and a 

  3 half after that, I called -- I sent an e-mail 

  4 and I called him and I invited him to stop 

  5 down in Lancaster County, or I said, I'll come 

  6 up to Elmerton Avenue.  Machs nix to this 

  7 dutchman.  And he offered to come down.  And 

  8 we had a very nice chat.  And, as I said, they 

  9 were at our conference last week.  We talked 

 10 ninety minutes, and I believe that those 

 11 issues have been resolved.  I really do.

 12 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Okay.  Craig, can 

 13 you tell us your views, as county treasurer, 

 14 regarding the new system, and then the views 

 15 of the organization that you represent?  

 16 MR. EBERSOLE:  Very good.  My 

 17 personal views are, this year was an improved 

 18 system over the past years.  Previously, it 

 19 was very labor intensive, requiring a lot of 

 20 handwriting, literally handwriting on tens of 

 21 thousands of applications in my county.  And 

 22 this new system, there's a bar code on it.  

 23 Some of the counties have bar code readers 

 24 hooked into their computers.  There were some 

 25 components that have populate, when you scan 
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  1 this, that bar code.  We were able to cut down 

  2 time.  

  3 Can -- is it possible to make a 

  4 little money on this?  I will tell you that I 

  5 had a young lady who -- we actually had her 

  6 face, like, a brick wall.  We took the phone 

  7 off her desk.  She did not have to go to the 

  8 counter.  And one day she processed eight 

  9 hundred, and I assure you, we didn't pay her 

 10 eight hundred dollars for her one day's 

 11 efforts.  So it went pretty good.  

 12 What's the rest of the organization 

 13 say?  There were fifty-three people at the 

 14 meeting last week, fifty-three counties -- I'm 

 15 sorry, more people, but fifty-three counties 

 16 were represented.  I did ask for a written 

 17 answer, because I -- it was secret ballot, if 

 18 you will.  Forty came back and urged the 

 19 association to fight to continue to be able to 

 20 maintain this relationship.  Nine said don't 

 21 care.  And -- I'm sorry, seven said don't 

 22 care.  Three said they would like to exit the 

 23 business, and there were three nonresponses.  

 24 That was our -- forty to seven to three to 

 25 three.
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  1 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Tell me, how 

  2 strong at all is the call within your 

  3 organization to see some dramatic changes made 

  4 to the process now in place, just after being 

  5 in place for the short time that it has 

  6 existed?  How often do you hear from 

  7 treasurers who are ready to let go of their 

  8 responsibility in allocating doe permits?  How 

  9 many treasurers do you have that simply want 

 10 out of the process?  

 11 MR. EBERSOLE:  Three.  

 12 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Just three?  

 13 MR. EBERSOLE:  It was last week.  It 

 14 was forty people who said fight or vigorously 

 15 fight to maintain county treasurers involved 

 16 with the sales; seven who said they didn't 

 17 care, pro or con; three who said they would 

 18 like to exit the business; and three who did 

 19 not vote.

 20 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Okay.  Now, those 

 21 that want to stay involved in the process, 

 22 have they -- have they indicated to you in 

 23 some way the manner in which they would like 

 24 to see the process tweaked to make it more 

 25 palatable to everyone involved?  
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  1 MR. EBERSOLE:  Yes.  Again, that was 

  2 part of -- as Mr. Roe described, a high-

  3 quality dialogue that we had last week for 

  4 about ninety minutes, with he and he brought 

  5 staff -- head of licensing, computer IT 

  6 person, et cetera -- and we went through a 

  7 small laundry list of the tweaking to that 

  8 system.  

  9 They were receptive to that.  Some 

 10 they said could happen.  Some they said they 

 11 would check to see if they could happen.  And 

 12 there may have been one or two that they said 

 13 probably couldn't happen.  But it was -- it 

 14 was a quality dialogue for about ninety 

 15 minutes.  Yes, sir.

 16 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  That was with the 

 17 Game Commission?  

 18 MR. EBERSOLE:  Yes, Mr. Roe and Dot 

 19 and IT, yes.

 20 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  All right.

 21 MR. EBERSOLE:  And fifty-three of the 

 22 county treasurers.  

 23 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Tell me, what 

 24 happened during the past year in the process 

 25 that you had to work with, the problems that 
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  1 you encountered?  Do you think -- do you think 

  2 the problems that existed could have been 

  3 better thought out and maybe the problems 

  4 never would have occurred?  

  5 MR. EBERSOLE:  I would have liked to 

  6 have seen a plan B.  It's just my makeup, you 

  7 know.  I like to know that if I was driving up 

  8 here this morning and if there was an accident 

  9 on 283, I know how to get off of that and over 

 10 to 322.  I like to have a plan B.  But it was 

 11 going to be a learning process.  

 12 The scariest part for us was not 

 13 having a clue as to how many we'll receive.  

 14 Our first day in Lancaster County, I got ten 

 15 mail trays.  Now, we had staffed up for it.  

 16 We had bulked up.  

 17 There were some counties -- and I 

 18 heard someone talking about cuts to staff and 

 19 what-have-you.  Gentlemen, I won't kid you for 

 20 a second.  The failure to have a budget for a 

 21 hundred days impacted counties.  I won't kid 

 22 you.  And different counties handled it in a 

 23 different manner.  I won't be judgmental, but 

 24 it impacted.  And some counties were able to 

 25 weather it, and other counties had to pull in 
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  1 the reigns a little bit.

  2 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Representative 

  3 DeLuca.  

  4 REPRESENTATIVE DELUCA:  Thank you, 

  5 Mr. Chairman.  

  6 I guess I'm going to ask you, Craig, 

  7 what's the process as far as somebody sending 

  8 the application in with a check?  Do you wait 

  9 for the check to clear?  Do you hold the 

 10 check?  Or, I mean, do you send the 

 11 application out right away and you just take 

 12 for granted the check is good?  Or do you wait 

 13 until the check is cleared, or how does that 

 14 work?

 15 MR. EBERSOLE:  Okay.  As you heard 

 16 Mr. Roe testify, I believe it was like 

 17 September the 13th or 14th when the Game 

 18 Commission set the date for when licenses had 

 19 to be mailed out.  And different counties view 

 20 that date differently.  Some mail them out as 

 21 soon as they can, others hold them a little 

 22 bit.  I will tell you, in my particular 

 23 county, Check 21 processes helped, if you're 

 24 familiar with Check 21.  

 25 REPRESENTATIVE DELUCA:  Right.
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  1 MR. EBERSOLE:  We will wait three, 

  2 four days, five days until the check clears.  

  3 Over the past half dozen years, we've probably 

  4 averaged about twenty-five to thirty-five bad 

  5 checks in my county.  And, no, I will not take 

  6 it out of my pocket.  When you write a bad 

  7 check, it's actually a crime under the 

  8 criminal code, and no.  So I will hold them 

  9 until the checks clear.  

 10 REPRESENTATIVE DELUCA:  You will hold 

 11 them until the check clears.

 12 MR. EBERSOLE:  Until the check 

 13 clears, because we're processing -- we 

 14 process, I don't know, twelve hundred, fifteen 

 15 hundred a day.  And so, realistically, five 

 16 days later, we've got six thousand sitting 

 17 there.  Well, my safe will only hold so many, 

 18 and I want them out.  But that was all.  

 19 REPRESENTATIVE DELUCA:  Let me ask 

 20 you, and I don't know how it works, but I know 

 21 sometimes when you go to these stores, these 

 22 other stores, they had the wire transfers.  

 23 They put the check in, the check goes directly 

 24 to the banks and that.  Is that a possibility 

 25 with the treasurers, to make these checks move 
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  1 instantly?  

  2 MR. EBERSOLE:  You talking about 

  3 e-check.  

  4 REPRESENTATIVE DELUCA:  Yeah.  Is 

  5 that a possibility?  

  6 MR. EBERSOLE:  If the bank accepts 

  7 it.  I mean, if the bank is willing to 

  8 recognize an e-check.  I would counter, I 

  9 believe, that there's people out there that 

 10 still count on the float of when they write 

 11 checks, and I think you'll get -- I think 

 12 you'll have more bad checks.  But in Lancaster 

 13 County, with a lot of plain community, 

 14 probably 10, 15 percent of what we receive are 

 15 money orders.  

 16 REPRESENTATIVE DELUCA:  Is that 

 17 right?  

 18 Okay.  That's all.  That's what I 

 19 wanted to ask you.  Thank you very much.

 20 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Representative 

 21 Haluska.  

 22 REPRESENTATIVE HALUSKA:  Thank you, 

 23 Mr. Chairman.  

 24 Craig, the question I have is, out of 

 25 the sixty-five county treasurers, how many 
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  1 opted in to be a full licensing agent?  

  2 MR. EBERSOLE:  All.

  3 REPRESENTATIVE HALUSKA:  They all 

  4 have the system?  I mean, I could go to the 

  5 county treasurer and go in and get my license 

  6 right through the system as I would at 

  7 Wal-Mart or anywhere else?

  8 MR. EBERSOLE:  Your hunting license?  

  9 REPRESENTATIVE HALUSKA:  Yes.

 10 MR. EBERSOLE:  Yes, sir.

 11 REPRESENTATIVE HALUSKA:  So if the 

 12 Game Commission were to go to a lottery, when 

 13 they come into the county treasurer to get a 

 14 license, would it be feasible to just put that 

 15 on their credit card and then if they were 

 16 denied their license, then there would a 

 17 credit show up on their credit card?  That 

 18 seems to be an easy way to get around all 

 19 these checks and holding checks and 

 20 everything, if you accept a credit card, and 

 21 then you just credit their check -- credit 

 22 card if it doesn't go through.  

 23 MR. EBERSOLE:  As long as you and I 

 24 have a good conversation on who's going to 

 25 absorb the 2.75 percent hit, because when 
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  1 my -- when I make a deposit into -- of the 

  2 checks and the money orders, when I make a 

  3 deposit into that state's account --

  4 REPRESENTATIVE HALUSKA:  Okay.

  5 MR. EBERSOLE:  Okay?  They come along 

  6 and sweep it, and that's okay, but now you 

  7 know why I want my checks to clear.  But they 

  8 come along and sweep that.  If I'm using 

  9 credit cards, and I have that credit card 

 10 assigned to go into that state account, who's 

 11 taking the 2.75 percent hit?  

 12 REPRESENTATIVE HALUSKA:  Well, 

 13 obviously, it would probably have to be the 

 14 commissioner or there will be a processing fee 

 15 or something, like we did on the initial 

 16 sells.  That's what covers the processing 

 17 fee.  

 18 But I know -- and I guess I'd have to 

 19 ask the Game Commission, Carl, if you can 

 20 answer that.  When I bought my hunting 

 21 license, it was on a credit card on the 

 22 Internet through the Game Commission.  Who 

 23 takes that 2.75 percent hit?  

 24 MR. ROE:  If it was on our Internet 

 25 system, we do.  If you did it at Wal-Mart, I'm 
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  1 assuming Wal-Mart absorbed that as their cost 

  2 of doing business.  

  3 REPRESENTATIVE HALUSKA:  So it would 

  4 be the commission then?  Okay.

  5 MR. EBERSOLE:  Can I make another 

  6 comment, Mr. Chairman?  

  7 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Say it again.

  8 MR. EBERSOLE:  May I make another 

  9 comment?  

 10 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Sure.

 11 MR. EBERSOLE:  Thank you.  

 12 On the lottery, I mean, I belong to a 

 13 camp in Potter, and I'm one of those guys, 

 14 that's really, really where I want to hunt.  I 

 15 mean, my little farm in Lancaster County might 

 16 see one deer a year.  So I really enjoy going 

 17 to camp and et cetera.  

 18 Under that lottery, I would propose 

 19 that you'll receive more phone calls, due 

 20 to -- I believe you'll get more phone calls as 

 21 opposed to less because people really are 

 22 committed to their first WMU.  And, I think, 

 23 if you go to a lottery system and, you know -- 

 24 right now, if I do my due diligence, and I 

 25 have my app, and it's in there on that first 
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  1 Monday or first Tuesday at the county 

  2 treasurer, there's a likelihood that I'm going 

  3 to get my WMU.  

  4 In the lottery -- I mean, I must tell 

  5 you, I personally don't play the lottery, I 

  6 was struck by lightning once, but the odds are 

  7 about the same, and I just don't play the 

  8 lottery, and I don't believe that the lottery  

  9 will result in less phone calls to all of you 

 10 and to your respective district offices.  I 

 11 really do believe that it will result in 

 12 more.  

 13 The other thing I would tell you is 

 14 that we heard talk about 2F and 2G, and 

 15 they're extremely popular places to hunt.  But 

 16 previously, previous years, when people would 

 17 send their WMU or send to the WMU and they all 

 18 come here to Harrisburg, 2F or 2G would be 

 19 closed by, like, the second or third day, and 

 20 it is quite possible that there hadn't even 

 21 been one application processed, not one 

 22 processed, not one sold.  But it was closed 

 23 because the Game Commission intelligently knew 

 24 that they had received as many as they could 

 25 receive or could handle for that WMU, and so 
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  1 two days, three days into it, boom, it shows 

  2 up as closed.  

  3 This year, if I recall -- and this is 

  4 off the top of my head, and if Carl says I'm 

  5 wrong, I accept that -- but it was like six or 

  6 seven or eight business days before 2F or 2G 

  7 was closed, because now it was based upon when 

  8 it was actually physically processed.  And is 

  9 that a different system?  Yes, it is.  Could 

 10 that generate phone calls from people?  Yes, 

 11 it can.  But you need to intelligently, 

 12 knowingly know how things occurred in the past 

 13 and how what changed this year.

 14 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  That is a point 

 15 well taken, and I'm sure it's going to give 

 16 the Game Commission something to think about 

 17 down the road.  

 18 Okay, Representative Rock.

 19 REPRESENTATIVE ROCK:  Thank you, 

 20 Mr. Chairman.  

 21 Craig, within the county government 

 22 system, what can the one dollar fee be used 

 23 for?  Can you use that to hire a temporary 

 24 employee?  

 25 MR. EBERSOLE:  Well, it goes into the 
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  1 general fund.  I mean, first it goes into the 

  2 state fund and they sweep it.  But the dollar 

  3 goes into our general fund.  

  4 And I do hire -- I don't have any 

  5 part-time people.  I have what I call seasonal 

  6 part time, the last two weeks of discount, 

  7 during spring tax, because we collect tax for 

  8 twenty municipalities.  I can use it to hire 

  9 those people.  The young lady that did eight 

 10 hundred, she worked for us for sixteen years.  

 11 She retired.  She's still really good at what 

 12 she does, and she likes to do it part time.  

 13 But in counties where you sell twenty, twenty-

 14 five thousand, some of these counties have had 

 15 nine-dollar-an-hour people, and they can 

 16 actually pay a staffer.  

 17 REPRESENTATIVE ROCK:  It just seems 

 18 to me, it wouldn't be a reason to be -- have a 

 19 shortage of employees if you could use this 

 20 money to bring in temporary employees without 

 21 benefits and they're processing five, eight 

 22 hundred applications a day, and you're paying 

 23 them eighty dollars a day, that just doesn't 

 24 seem to be an issue as far as employees go.  

 25 So it seems like we're bringing as many as we 
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  1 need to process the applications on time.  Is 

  2 that correct?  

  3 MR. EBERSOLE:  Well, it is correct.  

  4 But I must tell you that this summer was a tad 

  5 different in some counties, because some 

  6 counties had to lay people off.  I mean, there 

  7 was no money flowing, and some counties had 

  8 laid people off, and when people were laid off 

  9 in some counties, the commissioners were not 

 10 going to authorize temporary, part-time people 

 11 to be hired.  

 12 REPRESENTATIVE ROCK:  Even though 

 13 this money is above and beyond the budget.

 14 MR. EBERSOLE:  You're a politician, 

 15 sir.  You know fully well that you can't send 

 16 people out the door at a county level and 

 17 furlough them, and as they're going out the 

 18 door, bring in part-time people to work. 

 19 REPRESENTATIVE ROCK:  Okay.

 20 MR. EBERSOLE:  It just won't fly.

 21 REPRESENTATIVE ROCK:  Okay.  Thank 

 22 you.

 23 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Representative 

 24 Gergely.

 25 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  I was asking 
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  1 a lottery question, didn't understand what 

  2 Mr. Ebersole said about a lottery.  

  3 Now, that changes my perspective 

  4 because, again, I'm from -- Allegheny County 

  5 has more licensed hunters and fishermen than 

  6 anywhere else in the state, so if Pike County 

  7 processes sixteen thousand, we quadruple that, 

  8 probably even more than quadruple that.  

  9 And it's the opinion, as your 

 10 testimony indicated, 90 percent sent their 

 11 application to their county treasurer's 

 12 office?  

 13 MR. EBERSOLE:  Allegheny was an 

 14 exception.

 15 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  It was the 

 16 exception.  But I'm going to still believe 

 17 many, many of them, over 50, 60 percent, still 

 18 sent them to Allegheny.  Because I know my 

 19 guys -- I can tell you.  They call my office.  

 20 They didn't get their county of choice because 

 21 my county could not process as many of the 

 22 applications that were received.  So the 

 23 efficiency that you think exists in certain 

 24 counties that are much smaller failed in my 

 25 county because the total amount was so large 
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  1 that they never did get them done efficiently, 

  2 and everybody got turned down.  

  3 Now, Representative Costa and 

  4 Representative DeLuca are here.  I'm sure they 

  5 got the same calls I did about all their guys 

  6 not getting their licenses.  Again, I had 

  7 asked these guys -- quite honestly, I live in 

  8 the Internet age.  We pay our bills on the 

  9 Internet.  I didn't even know what the cost of 

 10 a stamp was.  

 11 So to give you an idea about -- I'm 

 12 not saying this isn't a good idea for county 

 13 treasurers, but we live in an age of 

 14 technology where efficiency matters.  And I 

 15 believe that you sell general hunting licenses 

 16 and general fishing licenses in your county 

 17 treasurer's office; correct?  

 18 MR. EBERSOLE:  Yes.  

 19 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  How many -- 

 20 of the total percentage of licenses sold, what 

 21 are -- who do they constitute?  The general 

 22 fishing license say.

 23 MR. EBERSOLE:  Of the general 

 24 number --

 25 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  What 
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  1 percentage of all your license sales do the 

  2 fishing licenses make up?  

  3 MR. EBERSOLE:  I don't know.

  4 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Very 

  5 minimal, you'd say?

  6 MR. EBERSOLE:  I won't say minimal.  

  7 I would say that it is -- we sell a few more 

  8 because we got forty or fifty mouths of the 

  9 Susquehanna.  I know Erie County does very 

 10 well with the -- having Lake Erie right 

 11 there.  I would say that that's -- people 

 12 aren't generally buying a fishing license for 

 13 a particular stream.  They're getting a 

 14 fishing license.  And I think it's depending 

 15 on whether or not your county actually has 

 16 some fishing waters in.  

 17 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Erie is a 

 18 good point because you can buy an Erie stamp 

 19 through the fishing commission.  

 20 What would be the percentage of the 

 21 total sales of their doe licenses that you 

 22 handle versus fishing?  How much of the  

 23 hundred percent of sales you make do doe 

 24 licenses constitute?

 25 MR. EBERSOLE:  Doe -- other than dog 
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  1 licenses, put that aside -- Allegheny County 

  2 does sell the most dog licenses, by the way.

  3 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Right.

  4 MR. EBERSOLE:  But doe licenses 

  5 probably make up 80 percent, north of 80 

  6 percent of our total hunt and fish licenses.  

  7 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  So it's a 

  8 pretty significant portion of the sales.

  9 MR. EBERSOLE:  Yes, sir.  

 10 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  I'm just 

 11 trying to get to that.  I mean, dogs tags 

 12 probably are a pretty heavy seller, too, in 

 13 your county as they are in Allegheny.  

 14  MR. EBERSOLE:  We're generally the 

 15 second or third largest selling of the dog 

 16 license.

 17 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  So they 

 18 would still be available to go into your 

 19 terminal and buy the doe license on that 

 20 opening day as much as they could go to 

 21 Wal-Mart; correct?  

 22 MR. EBERSOLE:  If we go to an over-

 23 the-counter system?  

 24 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Yes.

 25 MR. EBERSOLE:  Yes.  
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  1 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  The only 

  2 difference is, they wouldn't be able to use a 

  3 credit card; correct?  

  4 MR. EBERSOLE:  No.  They -- no, they 

  5 would not be able to use a credit card.  

  6 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  I think 

  7 also, for the members, there are additional 

  8 costs.  The stamp is now forty-four cents.  

  9 You have to put two of them on each envelope.  

 10 If you're going to buy a money order, I don't 

 11 even know what they cost.  Maybe a dollar, 

 12 dollar fifty additional cost.  

 13 I mean, if you're asking me for, you 

 14 know, getting -- moving us forward, I'd rather 

 15 give that money to the general fund or the 

 16 Game Commission and start using it for many 

 17 other things, not just to mail something or 

 18 get a money order to guarantee payment or 

 19 speak to the county commissioner or your 

 20 county treasurers about credit card sales.  

 21 I mean, everyone else, including 

 22 mom-and-pop sportsmen stores, have to 

 23 sacrifice whatever percentage they negotiate 

 24 with their credit card companies when they 

 25 make these general license sales, which they 
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  1 sell most of.  

  2 So, I mean, we have to keep all this 

  3 in mind as we pursue this, but I do thank you 

  4 for your testimony today.

  5 MR. EBERSOLE:  I believe that 

  6 Allegheny County, and I know that Dot has the 

  7 numbers along, but I believe Allegheny County 

  8 had the second largest drop in sales of any of 

  9 the counties, and I don't know if that's the 

 10 processing issue, because I thought there's 

 11 like eighty or ninety or a hundred people on 

 12 that staff.  

 13 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  I 

 14 couldn't -- I know that my guys, many of them, 

 15 sent to their county and didn't get their 

 16 license.  Maybe the word spread.  A lot of 

 17 them are up where you're at, on the northern 

 18 tier, like Potter County, Warren County, 

 19 Forest County, where they sell out fast.  A 

 20 lot of guys didn't get their tags.  So you're 

 21 talking about being disappointed, they already 

 22 are.  

 23 Now, with the lottery system, I would 

 24 think -- if you had a lottery, if I understand 

 25 this, if it's not going to be available on the 
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  1 first day, there wouldn't be a Black Friday 

  2 because you would have to wait, what did you 

  3 say, thirty days for it to happen?  

  4 MR. ROE:  No.  It would be available 

  5 the first day, but it would be how many we 

  6 would sell in that first round, and, again, 

  7 what your opportunity would be to get that.

  8 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  What's first 

  9 round?  

 10 MR. ROE:  Again, to make a lottery 

 11 equal, you have to have a time frame for 

 12 everybody to have an equal opportunity to get 

 13 it.  So let's say you choose 2B.  Everybody 

 14 that wanted one for 2B, because we know we 

 15 have always that bonus, would get that -- if 

 16 that was their first choice, they would get it 

 17 in the lottery, the first round, almost 

 18 guaranteed.  5C, 2A is another one that is in 

 19 the bonus arena.  

 20 So the challenge will be those 

 21 wildlife units that sell out during the first 

 22 round and what your opportunity would be for 

 23 those. 

 24 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Do you -- is 

 25 it Game Commission or treasurers that make up 
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  1 the cost of the envelopes?  Because I know you 

  2 said the quality was --

  3 MR. EBERSOLE:  Game Commission.

  4 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  How much 

  5 does it cost for printing?  How many envelopes  

  6 do we make?  

  7 MS. DERR:  About 1.6 million.  

  8 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Is that cost 

  9 or is that -- 

 10 MS. DERR:  That would be cost, yes.  

 11 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  That would 

 12 be cost that would be vacated by this also; is 

 13 that correct?  Okay.  

 14 Thank you.  

 15 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Are there any 

 16 other questions of Mr. Ebersole from the 

 17 committee?  

 18 Seeing none, Craig, thank you so much 

 19 for being here, for taking the time to be with 

 20 us, and for your testimony that you offered.  

 21 Let me assure you that if the committee 

 22 decides to pursue this issue, your comments 

 23 will be seriously considered.  

 24 Thank you, again, for being here.

 25 MR. EBERSOLE:  Thank you, 
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  1 Mr. Chairman.

  2 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Our next testifier 

  3 is a former member of the House of 

  4 Representatives and is now a Dauphin County 

  5 commissioner, Commissioner Jeffrey Haste, for 

  6 his testimony from his perspective as a county 

  7 commissioner and also as a hunter.  

  8 Commissioner, welcome.  And you can 

  9 begin when you're ready.  

 10 MR. HASTE:  Thank you.  

 11 Good morning, Mr. Chairman, members 

 12 of the committee.  

 13 As was mentioned, I'm a life-long 

 14 hunter and angler, former member of the House, 

 15 and actually a former member of this 

 16 committee.  With the combination of my 

 17 background and experience, I have a very 

 18 simple message today.  And that is, now is the 

 19 time to allow hunters the option of purchasing 

 20 antlerless deer licenses on line through the 

 21 Pennsylvania Automated License system, known 

 22 at PALS.  

 23 To explain how I came to this 

 24 position, allow me to explain my working 

 25 knowledge of the present license sales system 
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  1 as it relates to Dauphin County budget.  My 

  2 view is as a public servant and my personal 

  3 experience as a license-buying hunter.  

  4 First, as county commissioner, it is 

  5 my understanding that the county treasurer's 

  6 office retains the one dollar issuing fee for 

  7 each antlerless license it processes.  This 

  8 year, the first year in which the county 

  9 treasurers were permitted to sell antlerless 

 10 deer licenses for any wildlife management 

 11 unit, the county, meaning Dauphin County, 

 12 realized about $13,417 in revenues from the 

 13 antlerless license sales.  We expended 

 14 approximately $12,000 on our labor and 

 15 personnel costs and an additional amount on 

 16 office supplies.  

 17 The number of license applications is 

 18 an unknown from year to year and could greatly 

 19 increase or decrease given certain 

 20 circumstances, and this makes the process of 

 21 budgeting and staffing somewhat difficult.  

 22 Second, as a former member of this 

 23 body, I realize that the legislature is the 

 24 only entity that can change the laws as it 

 25 relates to the agencies or offices that may 
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  1 issue antlerless deer license.  

  2 With widespread ability and common 

  3 use of advanced technology, limiting the sales 

  4 of doe licenses solely through the county 

  5 treasurers is, at best, antiquated.  In this 

  6 age of computerization, there are, in fact, 

  7 very few purchases that cannot be made on line 

  8 and fewer still that require an application to 

  9 be sent through the mail to transact this 

 10 sale.  

 11 The inherent nature of mail 

 12 processing, in itself, eliminates any 

 13 semblance of first come, first serve that the 

 14 on-line purchasing would allow.  PALS has 

 15 finally brought the Game Commission licensing 

 16 process into the 21st century and created an 

 17 efficient and stream-lined system that could 

 18 allow hunters to purchase a license on line or 

 19 through their county treasurer, as they 

 20 prefer.  

 21 Innovation requires change, and 

 22 change is not always embraced by all parties 

 23 involved in the process.  Nonetheless, our 

 24 priority is and always should be how to best 

 25 serve our customer, the taxpayer, and more 
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  1 specifically in this case, the license-buying 

  2 hunter.  

  3 Lastly, as a hunter, I personally 

  4 have experienced the frustration and 

  5 inconvenience of having my antlerless deer  

  6 license application lost in the mail.  I also 

  7 have experienced the confusion that results in 

  8 not knowing whether I have been issued a 

  9 antlerless deer license, whether my 

 10 application was processed in time to receive a 

 11 antlerless license or the WMU that I would 

 12 like hunt in, or if the license will be mailed 

 13 back to me in time for opening day of archery 

 14 season.  Again, the PALS system can and will 

 15 eliminate in this.  

 16 By enabling any issuing agent to sell 

 17 antlerless deer license as a hunter, I could 

 18 purchase my general hunting license, including 

 19 my antlerless deer license, and walk out of 

 20 that issuing agent knowing that I have an 

 21 antlerless deer license issued for the WMU 

 22 that I wanted to hunt in or for the wildlife 

 23 management unit that was available at the time 

 24 I purchased it and it would not be in my 

 25 possession.  
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  1 I would no longer have to worry about 

  2 having my application lost in the mail.  

  3 Furthermore, such a process would eliminate 

  4 the burden among treasurers to race the clock 

  5 in issuing their constituents a license in the 

  6 WMU of their choice before they are sold out.  

  7 Since I'm fortunate enough to work  

  8 in the Dauphin County Courthouse, I most 

  9 likely still would purchase my license through 

 10 the Dauphin County treasurer's office, thus 

 11 keeping that one dollar in the county's fund.  

 12 For some of my friends who hunt, 

 13 travelling to downtown Harrisburg and finding 

 14 a parking space is not as convenient as it is 

 15 for me.  And in those cases, they have the 

 16 option to go elsewhere to buy their license, 

 17 Monday through Friday, during normal working 

 18 hours.  

 19 If we allow all issuing agencies to 

 20 sell antlerless deer license, think about how 

 21 convenient and customer friendly that would be 

 22 for the hunter.  

 23 So, again, I say, now is the time to 

 24 allow hunters the option of purchasing the 

 25 antlerless deer license on line, through the 
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  1 automated license system.  It completes the 

  2 transaction to a more user- and customer-

  3 friendly system.  

  4 Thank you.

  5 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Thank you so much 

  6 for your testimony, Commissioner.  

  7 In your testimony, you indicated -- 

  8 well, you talk about a first come, first serve 

  9 concept.  Do you think that that first come, 

 10 first serve concept would still have a place 

 11 in the new process?

 12 MR. HASTE:  In the new process? 

 13 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Yeah.  

 14 MR. HASTE:  I actually think it would 

 15 be better.  The experience that I know as a 

 16 hunter and then also having talked with our 

 17 treasurer, who -- I think our treasurer 

 18 handled the situation very, very well this 

 19 year.  

 20 But as a hunter, and I think some 

 21 others would recognize this, if you remember 

 22 in the old system, just where you would mail 

 23 it, I sometimes would take -- I lived in 

 24 Dauphin County, but my hunting camp was in  

 25 Perry County.  So we would take the 
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  1 applications to a post office in Perry County 

  2 and drop them in.  And it may take four or 

  3 five envelopes.  I would take the guys who -- 

  4 from my hunting camp, I take them all and drop 

  5 them off.  

  6 For years, one gentleman would kid me 

  7 and want to know if I hid his behind some box 

  8 somewhere, because I would drop all of those 

  9 envelopes at the exact same time, but when you  

 10 would get your license back, the numbering 

 11 process, I may have number 2000, and he had 

 12 number 6000, you know.  So you're not -- even 

 13 though they were dropped at the same time, it 

 14 was clear they were not processed in the order 

 15 in which they were received.  

 16 I also know when they're dumping the 

 17 mail and they go into those slots, by the time 

 18 the post office gets them, and, in my case, I 

 19 actually had my license lost for three weeks.  

 20 I got a rejection notice saying I didn't turn 

 21 it in in time, and when I went back and 

 22 checked the postmark of my envelope, it had 

 23 laid in the post office for three weeks.  I 

 24 was able to contact the Game Commission, and 

 25 they rectified that.  
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  1 But in the system that is now, the 

  2 mail, when you go to the post office, they 

  3 dump it into a box, they put them into trays.  

  4 They take it to the treasurer's office, there 

  5 again, dumped, resorted.  So again, the way in 

  6 which you drop your envelope, you think that 

  7 by dropping it at whatever time on Sunday 

  8 night, you're getting in there on time, but 

  9 just the way the process goes, everything from 

 10 Saturday night to whenever the post office 

 11 cleaned it out have dumped in there together.  

 12 So it isn't first come, first serve now.  

 13 And I think by going onto the 

 14 computer where it is more instantaneous, or at 

 15 least closer to being instantaneous, there is 

 16 more of that first come, first serve system 

 17 that could be in place.

 18 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  How about -- how 

 19 about we consider maybe a sense of fairness in 

 20 some of those management units where there are 

 21 not a lot of doe permits that are available, 

 22 yet there is a substantial number of 

 23 applicants?  What the commission has been 

 24 suggesting is a lottery system in those areas, 

 25 where, based on certain numbers, right, maybe 
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  1 one out of every three people that apply would 

  2 get one under the lottery.  What you're 

  3 proposing certainly simplifies, and if there 

  4 were five thousand applicant or doe tags 

  5 available in that management unit, the first 

  6 five thousand people to apply would receive 

  7 them.  Is that basically what you're saying?  

  8 MR. HASTE:  It would actually -- it 

  9 could be that way, or it would be the way they 

 10 set up their computer system, if they really 

 11 wanted a lottery to make it fair for everybody 

 12 who applied within a certain window.  And I 

 13 understand exactly what the director's saying 

 14 about the difficulty of the math, because you 

 15 want to have -- for fairness, you want to have 

 16 a window where it's open.  

 17 So it wouldn't be -- I'm sitting in 

 18 the back there, listening and thinking, one of 

 19 the flaws of going straight to the computer 

 20 system, a true first come, first serve, is 

 21 anybody at 12:01 or -- you'd have to set the 

 22 time, but 12:01 on opening day of application, 

 23 those who were staying up late at night 

 24 watching infomercials, you know, could go in 

 25 right away and you have them.  And those who 
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  1 are hard working people wouldn't be able to 

  2 get the same chance.  

  3 So you would want to have some window 

  4 in which applications would go in and then 

  5 that lottery process for that window, to be 

  6 fair, to give everybody a chance to make 

  7 application.

  8 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  We do have a 

  9 number of management units where a lottery 

 10 certainly would not be necessary.  

 11 MR. HASTE:  Right.

 12 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  We have a number 

 13 that simply don't sell out in the first wave, 

 14 and those management units would have bonus 

 15 tags for sale after several weeks.  That would 

 16 not be problematic there.  

 17 But, again, to simply adopt a first 

 18 come, first serve concept in an area, again, 

 19 like Dan Sewer (phonetic spelling) comes from, 

 20 2G, where you had a limited number --

 21 MR. HASTE:  Right --

 22 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  And where you 

 23 simply allow the first three or four thousand 

 24 people to apply and take those after ten 

 25 thousand people apply in general, could be 
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  1 problematic.  

  2 MR. HASTE:  Right. 

  3 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Could be 

  4 problematic.  

  5 In cases like that, I think a lottery 

  6 probably would be the fairer way to prevent 

  7 that.  What do you think?  

  8 MR. HASTE:  I think fairness is the 

  9 key to this.  And I, again, with technology, 

 10 the way it is today, I think there is a fairer 

 11 way to do it than we do it now.

 12 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Okay.  

 13 Representative Pyle.

 14 REPRESENTATIVE PYLE:  Thanks, 

 15 Mr. Chairman.  

 16 Thanks for coming, Commissioner.  

 17 You made a statement a little bit ago 

 18 that piqued my curiosity.  Did I hear you 

 19 correctly when you said there was X amount in 

 20 doe tags being handled by your treasurer and 

 21 when you boiled all the numbers down and what-

 22 not, if I did the mental math right, the 

 23 counties really did not, quote, unquote, make 

 24 out financially?  You had mentioned you took 

 25 in fourteen thousand dollars in sales, you 
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  1 drove out ten thousand in costs and another 

  2 three thousand for personnel and mailing and 

  3 what-not.  So you made about a thousand 

  4 bucks.  Did I hear you right?  

  5 MR. HASTE:  That's correct.  

  6 Now, again, there are other -- and 

  7 how we did -- just so it's fair, if we were 

  8 strictly looking at it to raise money, we 

  9 might have handled it differently, and what we 

 10 could have done there is just those 

 11 suggestions, just hire part-time people to 

 12 process.  

 13 In our case, what we did is -- and I 

 14 have talked to our treasurer -- we have one 

 15 individual in the treasurer's office that 

 16 handles miscellaneous things in the office.  

 17 And I've said, if we didn't do this and this 

 18 wasn't part of the process, what would you do 

 19 as a treasurer?  And our treasurer said, I 

 20 probably wouldn't need to fill that position 

 21 if it became vacant.  

 22 So we would actually get in -- in our 

 23 situation, we would be in a position where we 

 24 could have one less person working there.  So, 

 25 if we were to lose this, we would not lose 
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  1 money because we'd make it up by not having a 

  2 person.  

  3 Other counties are different.  And if 

  4 you look at this as a money maker, you could 

  5 make money from this if you handled it as has 

  6 been suggested before by other counties.  We 

  7 just don't -- we use existing staff to do it.  

  8 And it's a staff person that we know 

  9 throughout the year handles miscellaneous 

 10 items, because we know this is coming up.  

 11 But's not a money maker for us.

 12 REPRESENTATIVE PYLE:  From your 

 13 testimony, by and large, you favor the PALS 

 14 system with modification.  

 15 MR. HASTE:  Absolutely.

 16 REPRESENTATIVE PYLE:  Thank you. 

 17 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

 18 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Representative 

 19 Haluska.  

 20 REPRESENTATIVE HALUSKA:  Thank you, 

 21 Mr. Commissioner, for your testimony.  

 22 My question, since you brought up the 

 23 finances, basically, if I'm going to my mental 

 24 math here, as Jeffrey did, you have to put two 

 25 stamps on an envelope in the process that 
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  1 we're doing now.  So if this committee were to 

  2 pass, like we did for the licenses, there's a 

  3 fifty-cent charge on that.  

  4 Carl, am I correct?

  5 MR. ROE:  Correct.  Seventy cents.

  6 REPRESENTATIVE HALUSKA:  Seventy 

  7 cents.  So it's almost awash, then, for the 

  8 hunter, if he was to pay that to do it with a 

  9 credit card versus having to buy two first-

 10 class stamps and put it in an envelope.

 11 MR. ROE:  You still pay the seventy 

 12 cents for antlerless.  He will save the 

 13 postage cost totally.  

 14 REPRESENTATIVE HALUSKA:  Okay.  So if 

 15 you -- explain that to me, Carl, for the 

 16 antlerless.  

 17 MR. ROE:  Because there's a seventy-

 18 cent charge on the antlerless license also, 

 19 six dollars and seventy cents, so it doesn't 

 20 make a difference if you purchase it at a -- 

 21 like a commercial vendor or a county 

 22 treasurer, that seventy cents is a constant.  

 23 REPRESENTATIVE HALUSKA:  Okay.  So 

 24 that cost is already on there.  So you're 

 25 collecting that cost.  
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  1 MR. ROE:  Yes.

  2 REPRESENTATIVE HALUSKA:  And the 

  3 reason you're collecting that cost is because 

  4 of the transaction fee?  

  5 MR. ROE:  Correct.  

  6 REPRESENTATIVE HALUSKA:  But the 

  7 credit card fee would be over and above that?  

  8 Okay.  

  9 Thank you.

 10 MR. HASTE:  And I've used -- I've 

 11 had -- sort of learned about the PALS by 

 12 accident.  I have a son who's in the military 

 13 and needed a military license and was able to 

 14 go to the Internet and use it, and it was very 

 15 easy to use.  So I stumbled on PALS by 

 16 accident.  I'm not one of those computer users 

 17 by nature.  But once I was there, it was a 

 18 very efficient, easy system to use.  I, being 

 19 a creature of habit, would still probably buy 

 20 my license from the treasurer's office.  It's 

 21 the easiest thing for me to do.  

 22 I also, as a county commissioner, 

 23 would like that whatever fee there is back in 

 24 our pockets, but for those who can't and 

 25 aren't in that situation, the Internet process 

102



  1 is very efficient.

  2 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Are there any 

  3 other questions for Commissioner Haste?  

  4 Seeing none, Commissioner, thank you 

  5 for being here --

  6 MR. HASTE:  Thank you.

  7 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  -- and for the 

  8 perspectives you brought to the issue at hand, 

  9 both as an elected official and as the 

 10 interest of a hunter.

 11 MR. HASTE:  Thank you.

 12 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Our next presenter 

 13 is Mr. Jeff Souders, from the Pennsylvania 

 14 Federation of Sportsmen's Club.  

 15 Jeff, welcome.  As you begin your 

 16 testimony, please tell the members and the 

 17 folks here of your organization's current 

 18 membership.

 19 MR. SOUDERS:  Good morning, Chairman 

 20 Staback and members of the committee. 

 21 My name is Jeff Souders.  I'm the 

 22 legislative liaison for the Pennsylvania 

 23 Federation of Sportsmen's Clubs.  PFSC is one 

 24 of the oldest and largest sportsmen's 

 25 organizations in Pennsylvania.  I come here 
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  1 today representing nearly one hundred thousand 

  2 sportsmen and conservationists.  

  3 Currently, the process for obtaining 

  4 an antlerless license is inefficient and 

  5 cumbersome.  To address this issue, at our 

  6 fall convention, our delegates voted to 

  7 support changing the current antlerless 

  8 license allocation process to a method that 

  9 employs the new technologies available to us.  

 10 Sending the antlerless envelope to 

 11 your county treasurer was an adequate system 

 12 in the past.  But in this age of improving 

 13 technology, systems such as the Pennsylvania 

 14 Automated License System, or PALS, renders the 

 15 antlerless envelopes to county treasurers 

 16 system obsolete.

 17 The federation does not come here 

 18 today to tell anyone how to do their job.  We 

 19 are here today to challenge everyone involved 

 20 to find a better way to allocate antlerless 

 21 licenses.  If we can find a way to eliminate 

 22 the antlerless envelopes and improve the 

 23 current system, it will increase efficiency, 

 24 Pennsylvania Game Commission will see a  

 25 significant cost savings because they would 
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  1 not have to print antlerless envelopes, and 

  2 applicants would no longer have to submit two 

  3 postage stamps, which is a savings nearly 

  4 equal to the issuing agent fee.

  5 Pennsylvania Federation of 

  6 Sportsmen's Clubs has heard complaints about 

  7 county treasurers holding antlerless 

  8 applications until they are sure the 

  9 applicants' checks have cleared.  But using 

 10 the technology available to us, this would no 

 11 longer be a concern and PGC and issuing agents 

 12 would have the money in their accounts 

 13 immediately.  

 14 There is a better way and we are 

 15 confident that the professionals at the 

 16 Pennsylvania Game Commission, along with 

 17 Pennsylvania Sportsmen, will find and develop 

 18 the most practical and efficient antlerless 

 19 license allocation procedure.  

 20 Thank you for giving us the 

 21 opportunity to testify here today.

 22 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Thank you, Jeff.  

 23 Jeff, in your testimony, you talk 

 24 about doing things or trying to find a better 

 25 way of doing things.  Do you or the federation 
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  1 have any ideas at all along those lines of 

  2 just how the system can be made better?  

  3 MR. SOUDERS:  Really, alls we are 

  4 supporting is opening a dialogue to discuss, 

  5 with this new technology that's available, 

  6 that this would probably the best time to look 

  7 into making improvements and, really, we would 

  8 like to sit down, and if our assistance is 

  9 needed, with whoever's involved in coming up 

 10 with, you know, some ideas.  But right now, 

 11 we're really just happy that we're opening up 

 12 this discussion.

 13 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Has the 

 14 organization given any thought, or yourself, 

 15 for that matter, as to their feelings 

 16 regarding a potential lottery system?  What do 

 17 they think about that?  

 18 MR. SOUDERS:  Well, that hasn't been 

 19 brought up.  I mean, something that I was 

 20 certainly interested to hear, and I'm going to 

 21 take that back to our members, and you know, I 

 22 look forward to hearing more about it.

 23 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Okay.  Okay.  

 24 Jeff, that's all the questions that 

 25 we would have for you.  You're very fortunate.  

106



  1 You lucked out.  

  2 Thank you, again, for being here, 

  3 Jeff.

  4 MR. SOUDERS:  Thank you, sir.

  5 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Our next testimony 

  6 will be given by Lebanon's county treasurer, 

  7 Sallie Neuin.  

  8 We certainly appreciate your time and 

  9 efforts, Sallie --

 10 MS. NEUIN:  Thank you.

 11 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  -- to be here to 

 12 give your perspective on the process.  You can 

 13 begin whenever you're ready.

 14 MS. NEUIN:  Thank you.  

 15 Good morning.  I would like to thank 

 16 Representative Staback and all the other 

 17 members after the Game and Fisheries Committee 

 18 for giving me this opportunity to speak this 

 19 morning.  

 20 The point-of-sales system implemented 

 21 by the Game Commission has, for the most part, 

 22 been very good.  I certainly do not miss hand 

 23 writing all the information on the licenses.  

 24 I feel these first months of using the point-

 25 of-sales system has been a learning experience 
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  1 for the treasurers.  

  2 As for the antlerless deer process, 

  3 there was a lot of anxiety because we did not 

  4 know how many licenses we would receive in our 

  5 offices.  For that reason, I did not get 

  6 approval ahead of time for extra help.  

  7 When we received almost two thousand 

  8 six hundred envelopes the first three days, I 

  9 did go to the county commissioners.  Only two 

 10 of the commissioners were present at the 

 11 meeting.  And our chairman told me not to get 

 12 excited, that I could handle it.  And he did 

 13 not take into consideration that the hunter 

 14 was expecting first come, first served.  

 15 I was already working with one less 

 16 person in my office because of the budget cuts 

 17 at the end of 2008.  My dedicated staff worked 

 18 diligently to process as many licenses as 

 19 possible.  The next week I did go back to the 

 20 commissioners, and with the full board 

 21 present, I did get that extra help.  

 22 So to the Game Commission personnel 

 23 that stated we could get out of the licensing 

 24 business, my issue was not as much with the 

 25 Game Commission as it was with the 
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  1 commissioners, my county commissioners.  

  2 You have to realize that prior years, 

  3 even though wildlife management units sold out 

  4 in two to three days, we have approximately 

  5 six weeks to process them.  This year actually 

  6 went a lot better than what I thought it 

  7 would.  Someone could process three to four 

  8 hundred a day and the popular area did not 

  9 sell out as quickly as I thought they would.  

 10 We did have some issues when we would 

 11 enter the CID number, which is the customer 

 12 identification number, and the information was 

 13 not correct.  I think when the license was 

 14 sold and the driver's license was swiped, the 

 15 fields were not properly -- were not filled in 

 16 properly.  When this happened in our office, 

 17 we corrected it.  But as we were processing 

 18 antlerless applications, we could see other 

 19 sales outlets did not correct them.  

 20 My staff is very diligent in getting 

 21 a hunter his doe license.  Many times we'd 

 22 call them -- excuse me -- to verify a wildlife 

 23 management unit if we could not read it, or if 

 24 their name did not correspond with the CID 

 25 number on the application.  We also took the 
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  1 time to go to the Game Commission's website to 

  2 check on results for many hunters who called, 

  3 To check to see if they received their 

  4 antlerless license.  It was easier to look it 

  5 up for them than it was to explain to them 

  6 where to find it.  

  7 One thing I would request on the 

  8 website is the date when the antlerless 

  9 license was awarded.  This could be helpful 

 10 when doing replacements.  

 11 Being a hunter myself, I know that 

 12 most Pennsylvania hunters are true hunters.  I 

 13 have often been told by outfitters from other 

 14 states and Canada that they know when a hunter 

 15 from Pennsylvania books a hunt with them he's 

 16 a dedicated hunter and a true sportsman.  

 17 There has been many times when my 

 18 husband and myself have not been able to hunt 

 19 out west because we did not get drawn for 

 20 license.  Sometimes it takes years. 

 21 Antlerless licensing is a service the 

 22 treasurer's office provides, and it is a 

 23 revenue for the county.  It maybe a very small 

 24 portion of our budget, but every little bit 

 25 helps.  We also found that the majority of the 
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  1 applications we received were from our local 

  2 area.  

  3 Thank you, again, for listening, 

  4 respectfully, Sallie Neuin.

  5 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Sallie, just how 

  6 many applications did your office wind up 

  7 handling overall?  

  8 MS. NEUIN:  Overall, we actually did 

  9 about seventy-seven hundred, which was about 

 10 three hundred fifty more than we had last 

 11 year.  We did actually do more than we were 

 12 normally allotted for the year.

 13 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Now, the seventy-

 14 seven hundred, is that all first-wave 

 15 applications or --

 16 MS. NEUIN:  No.  That's over the 

 17 whole licensing period.

 18 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Did you get 

 19 involved with bonus sales as well?  

 20 MS. NEUIN:  Yes.  Yes.

 21 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  How many 

 22 additional personnel do you have to hire to 

 23 process?  

 24 MS. NEUIN:  Normally, I did not hire 

 25 additional personnel until, of course, last 
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  1 year I did lose a person to budget, and I get 

  2 a part-time person who was -- also helped me 

  3 in taxing season, because we do collect for 

  4 quite a few municipalities and the county 

  5 taxes in our office.  So I just got one extra 

  6 person in as a part time.  And once I got 

  7 approval to get her back in, we were fine.  

  8 But before that, my office actually 

  9 did step in.  We were working a lot of extra 

 10 hours that my office does not get paid for.  

 11 They end up taking that comp time, and they 

 12 know that, but we certainly do work during 

 13 that process, many days starting at 7:30 in 

 14 the morning and working till 6:00, kind of 

 15 like Mike did, you know.  We did work to get 

 16 them processed.  

 17 But you also have to remember, we 

 18 have all the other county business that also 

 19 needs to be tended to.  But this is something 

 20 we look forward -- I mean, we look forward -- 

 21 maybe not all of them, but it's a service we 

 22 provide, and we are certainly, you know, glad 

 23 to do it.

 24 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  In processing all 

 25 these applications that you're receiving, do 
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  1 you find very many of them that are erroneous 

  2 in some way?  And are the errors that you 

  3 discovered the kind of errors that would 

  4 prohibit you from processing the application?  

  5 MS. NEUIN:  Sometimes we cannot get 

  6 the errors corrected, but we certainly do 

  7 try.  I mean, we put calls to people to make 

  8 sure.  We try to correct what we can, you 

  9 know, to get them processed.  So we put calls 

 10 out to the hunters, if we have a phone number 

 11 or we can find a phone number, and give them a 

 12 chance to get back to us to correct it so that 

 13 we can process the license.

 14 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  I'm just curious.  

 15 What kind of an error would you look at that 

 16 would prohibit you from sending out or 

 17 processing a permit?  

 18 MS. NEUIN:  Well, if they aren't 

 19 signed, if the application is not signed, that 

 20 would be one.  If we received a wrong amount 

 21 of money for the license, that would also be 

 22 another way that we wouldn't be able to 

 23 process it.  

 24 If we -- if they have the wrong 

 25 customer identification number and we can't 
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  1 make a contact, then we would have to send it 

  2 back to them. 

  3 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Tell me, does the 

  4 lack of a customer I.D. number on the 

  5 application prohibit you from processing the 

  6 application?

  7 MS. NEUIN:  Yes.

  8 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  It will?  That 

  9 number must be there.

 10 MS. NEUIN:  Yes, that number has to 

 11 be there.  And with the application that they 

 12 received with their hunting license, it was 

 13 automatically there, but what we found in the 

 14 first round bonuses, a lot of people used the 

 15 copy out of their digest, and, then, of course 

 16 they had to put it on.  And I know years 

 17 before, you could only use the application you 

 18 received with your license, which I think was 

 19 a pink paper years ago or yellow, that you 

 20 would send in, and that had to be used for the 

 21 first round license.  This year they could use 

 22 either what was in the digest or what they got 

 23 with their licensing.  That could cause some 

 24 issues for wrong numbers.

 25 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Thank you.  
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  1 Representative Gergely.  

  2 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Thank you, 

  3 Mr. Chairman.  

  4 I just, for the record, wanted to 

  5 reinforce what Commissioner Haste said, and 

  6 just jarred my memory from years ago.  We used 

  7 to hunt doe in Indiana County, and so -- when 

  8 my father-in-law lived in Indiana County, so 

  9 he would have my envelope with his envelope, 

 10 and I live in Allegheny County, and a few 

 11 times my buddies forgot to give me their 

 12 envelope, and they didn't have it to be put 

 13 into the Indiana County mailbox in the county 

 14 seat, Indiana, PA.  Ironically, my father 

 15 always got the best -- my father-in-law always 

 16 got the best number issued to him.  He lived 

 17 in Indian County.  I usually got one, but the 

 18 guy that mailed it the same day that lived in 

 19 Allegheny County that mailed it from Allegheny 

 20 County, about two or three times he got 

 21 denied.  

 22 So a lottery makes more sense than 

 23 anything, and being dependent upon the post 

 24 office, which none of us control, has made the 

 25 system obsolete, more than anything else.  And 
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  1 I think we got to consider that.  

  2 I think we made a really good point.  

  3 I forgot all about that.  I'm sitting here 

  4 thinking, my gosh, he's right.  My father-in-

  5 law sometimes had less than the number 

  6 thousand for his license, and mine went in 

  7 sometimes the same envelope as his.  So I 

  8 don't want to say politics, but, hmm, everyone 

  9 gets elected who's testifying here today.  I 

 10 think we do have to institute a lottery.  I 

 11 think it's fair for everybody.  

 12 Thank you.

 13 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Are there any 

 14 other questions for Treasurer Neuin?  

 15 Seeing none, Sallie, thank you so 

 16 much for taking your time to be here for your 

 17 perspective.  

 18 MS. NEUIN:  Sure.

 19 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Our final 

 20 speaker -- our final speaker is Mr. Ronald 

 21 Peters.  Mr. Peters is here from Crawford 

 22 County and brings his perspective to today's 

 23 hearing.  

 24 Mr. Peters, you have traveled quite a 

 25 way to be here, and I want you to know that 
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  1 your efforts are certainly appreciated, and 

  2 you can please begin your testimony when 

  3 you're ready.

  4 MR. PETERS:  Good morning, ladies and 

  5 gentlemen, Chairman Staback and members of the 

  6 fish house and game committee.  

  7 I thank you for the opportunity to 

  8 speak on this subject, which is very important 

  9 to me.  As you can see, I'm sitting here.  My 

 10 antlerless deer license is on my coat at 

 11 home.  My muzzle loader's in the corner.  I 

 12 could be out there right now.  So it's 

 13 important to not only me, but most all of the 

 14 Pennsylvania hunters.  And actually, it's an 

 15 extremely emotional thing to a lot of the 

 16 hunters in Pennsylvania.  

 17 I am -- to give you some of the idea 

 18 of my credentials, I am the president of the 

 19 Crawford County Sportsmen's Council, a member 

 20 of the Pennsylvania Federation of Sportsmen's 

 21 Clubs, and I'm also or was at one time the 

 22 chairman of the northwest division of the 

 23 Pennsylvania Federation of Sportsmen's Clubs.  

 24 However, I would like to testify that I am not 

 25 speaking on behalf of the federation at this 
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  1 point in time.  

  2 I would like to inform you that I 

  3 have worked on a voluntary basis in Crawford 

  4 County on the issuing of antlerless license 

  5 for approximately twenty-five years.  I have 

  6 seen several different issuing methods over 

  7 this time, and I feel that that gives me the 

  8 authority to speak on this subject.  

  9 I have actually, back years ago, 

 10 stood in line in Warren County 6 o'clock the 

 11 night before, till, finally, in the morning, 

 12 when they opened the doors at the courthouse, 

 13 that line had run entirely around that block, 

 14 three abreast.  This is not the way to issue 

 15 doe license.  

 16 The system this year, I found, was 

 17 probably more labor intense and time consuming 

 18 than any system I have worked on over the last 

 19 twenty-five years.  However, I do feel that 

 20 this system could work if it was tweaked 

 21 properly.  

 22 One of the largest problems that we 

 23 had in our issuing in Crawford County was -- 

 24 and this is a conservative estimate, and not 

 25 really an estimate, because I had taken a 
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  1 hundred envelopes at a time -- found that 

  2 probably at least 90 percent of them people 

  3 did not put their CID number on their checks, 

  4 which, again, goes back to what the gentleman 

  5 had said earlier, that he was taking that out 

  6 of his pocket.  If that check bounces, there's 

  7 no way to go back.  In some cases, that check 

  8 could be made by a third-party person that may 

  9 not even have the same name or even the same 

 10 address as the person that maybe issued that 

 11 check.  

 12 So this was quite a problem.  And I'm 

 13 sure most of the treasurers don't want to take 

 14 the responsibility of -- somebody had stated 

 15 like thirty checks or so bouncing.  I'm sure 

 16 they don't want to take that.  And I'm 

 17 assuming that treasurers are responsible to 

 18 auditors for however everything comes out when 

 19 they go ahead and balance their books.  They 

 20 could be checked at any time.  

 21 And this was probably one of the 

 22 biggest things that we had, because all the 

 23 licenses or the checks that did not have a CID 

 24 number on, we had to record that on every one 

 25 of them checks.  That's one of the things that 
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  1 really made it time consuming.  

  2 Some of the other things that were a 

  3 little simpler.  I heard somebody talk about 

  4 the application that was in the digest.  

  5 Believe me, that should never be used for a 

  6 first round choice.  We were receiving 

  7 licenses that had not only the yellow sticker 

  8 application, but also the digest application 

  9 in there for only one check or for only one 

 10 license, which, you know, this was a real 

 11 problem, because what we wound up having to do 

 12 was take the paper one from the digest and 

 13 just throw it out.  

 14 And not only that, the paper one in 

 15 the digest is way too big.  If you're one of 

 16 the people processing these things, and what 

 17 we do is when we open them, we do the checks 

 18 on it.  We check to make sure there's a check 

 19 in there, there's an application in there, and 

 20 the amount's proper, everything's made out 

 21 properly.  In order to use that paper one, 

 22 that has to be folded at least twice now, then 

 23 were put back into that pink envelope.  

 24 When they go to the person that's 

 25 putting that into the computer, they wind up 
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  1 having to unfold that about four times.  Keep 

  2 in mind, that has to go back in the same 

  3 envelope, so, consequently, they have to open 

  4 it up so they can see what units are asked 

  5 for, then when they get done with it and 

  6 everything checks out, they have to fold it 

  7 back up because it has to go back in the 

  8 envelope or back with that stuff in order for, 

  9 you know, the license to be returned.  So that 

 10 was another big thing.  That would never have 

 11 to be near the size that it was.  

 12 If many of you people have maybe 

 13 applied for, like, a goose blind either at 

 14 Middle Creek or Pymatuning, you might know 

 15 that the size of that is probably maybe only a 

 16 third or less the size of the one that's in 

 17 the digest.  You don't need to be near that 

 18 size.   

 19 Some of the other things that we 

 20 found occurred quite frequently.  Okay.  In 

 21 other words, that 90 percent of the people not 

 22 putting that on the envelope -- on the check, 

 23 I have to give the Game Commission some 

 24 credit.  They tried to save some money by 

 25 using old envelopes.  There was not a 

121



  1 checklist on the back stating that that had to 

  2 be on there.  Believe it or not, two of the 

  3 three WCOs in my area did not put the CID 

  4 number on their check.  And that was only the 

  5 two that I seen.  The third one, I don't even 

  6 know where he sent for our county or whether 

  7 it went through somebody else.  But that just 

  8 goes to show you, even the WCOs did not even 

  9 have an idea that that had to be on there.  

 10 The only place that was on there was 

 11 in the digest, just above the application.  I 

 12 think the next to the last line, it stated 

 13 that had to be so.  But there was several 

 14 things like that that occurred quite often.  

 15 I hear you talk about lotteries and 

 16 so forth.  Most people only want the unit that 

 17 they're asking for.  I've seen many 

 18 applications come in for only one request on 

 19 there.  I've seen many applications go in 

 20 there, let's say for -- with the three of 

 21 them, 1B, 1B, 1B.  That's telling me that's 

 22 all they want.  

 23 Some of the other things too, and I 

 24 haven't heard that mentioned today either, and 

 25 I don't know what the Game Commission might be 
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  1 able to do about that.  Them things are nearly 

  2 impossible to write on.  I don't know how many 

  3 of you people had any success with writing on 

  4 that yellow sticker, but it's nearly 

  5 impossible.  Not only that, a lot of them were 

  6 smudged so bad you couldn't read them anyway.  

  7 So that's something that needs to be 

  8 addressed.  I don't know what the solution to 

  9 that is, maybe a different type of paper or so 

 10 forth.  

 11 But in a lot of cases, people didn't 

 12 even fill in some of that stuff, even on those 

 13 things, they didn't put in their check number 

 14 on there or nothing.  

 15 So I'm not blaming necessarily all on 

 16 the Game Commission.  I'll tell you, we have a 

 17 saying when we do doe license in Crawford 

 18 County, after twenty-five years, you figure 

 19 you've seen everything.  Believe me, you 

 20 haven't.  There's always something different 

 21 that comes up that is unbelievable.  And as 

 22 far as the writing on them, we got 

 23 applications that come in that actually had 

 24 notes there saying, How are you supposed to 

 25 write on these things?  That's how bad the 

123



  1 paper was to write on.  

  2 I've heard everybody talking about a 

  3 lottery system.  I've talked -- because I knew 

  4 I was coming down here and I was going to 

  5 testify, I talked to a lot of the people in 

  6 Crawford County, basically some out of Erie 

  7 County, and some out of Mercer and places like 

  8 that.  No one that I have talked to yet agrees 

  9 with the lottery system.  

 10 A lottery system could mean your son, 

 11 your daughter, your wife, your best hunting 

 12 buddy may not get the doe license, even though 

 13 he's been in there and had his application in 

 14 in time.  And it may even be yourself.  So 

 15 basically, everyone I have talked to does not 

 16 agree with a lottery system, which is also 

 17 evident why people only put one unit down.  

 18 They want that unit or they don't want to hunt 

 19 at all.  

 20 I've heard this come up several 

 21 times, and this is one of the things I had in 

 22 the testimony, and I have even talked to some 

 23 of the people at the mom-and-pop places that 

 24 issue hunting license.  They have no idea, I 

 25 don't think, what they're going to incur if we 
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  1 wind up issuing them at least on a come -- 

  2 first come, first serve basis, because I don't 

  3 know how they're going to hand it.  How are 

  4 they going to handle two thousand people 

  5 outside a mom-and-pop store?  And when one of 

  6 these things kicks out on them, because 

  7 believe me or not, I think that the girls at 

  8 the courthouse in Crawford said, on an average 

  9 day, they were probably having to call the 

 10 vendor, okay, of the system -- I'm assuming in 

 11 Tennessee or wherever that is -- on situations 

 12 where a license actually bounced, to see why 

 13 this is happening.  Well, if you do that in 

 14 mom and pops, and they got one computer, how 

 15 long are you going to be sitting there with 

 16 two thousand people in line waiting to get a 

 17 license?  

 18 Personally, I feel that it should be 

 19 left in the hands of the county treasurers.  

 20 They have more expertise, and I think they've 

 21 been more accustomed to doing this than 

 22 anybody else.  You go to Wal-Mart, it's no 

 23 telling what you're going to get there.  In 

 24 fact, I've heard horror stories, you know, 

 25 coming out of those places.  
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  1 One of the other things, along with 

  2 that, I know several people, and I think there 

  3 is a ton of them out there that people don't 

  4 realize, have more than one CID number.  I 

  5 have a friend that helps us work on doe 

  6 licenses was setting there with two that he 

  7 was not even aware of.  

  8 And what had happened, how he wound 

  9 up finding out, he had his hunting license.  

 10 He had had a fishing license for years.  He 

 11 wanted to get a Lake Erie stamp.  Well, he 

 12 went to the division outlet for the fish 

 13 commission in Meadville to get a Lake Erie  

 14 stamp.  They discovered that he had two CID 

 15 numbers, because that number should be the 

 16 same on your fishing license as it does on 

 17 your hunting license.  It did not jive.  

 18 I've heard horror stories where people that 

 19 had three CID numbers.  Okay?  

 20 So, I mean, these are things that are 

 21 in the system that probably maybe can be 

 22 straightened out, but if you run onto one of 

 23 them problems while you're in the process of 

 24 doing a doe license, then you've got a 

 25 problem, and you're going to shut that 
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  1 particular computer down until you get that 

  2 problem straightened out.  These are some of 

  3 the things too that have come into play.  

  4 One other thing that I have, and this 

  5 is kind of a personal thing with me, and I 

  6 think maybe it is something that needs to be 

  7 looked at.  I have a son that lives in Ohio.  

  8 Okay?  He has been coming back here to 

  9 Pennsylvania hunting almost every year.  I am 

 10 in unit 1B.  This is the unit I'm in.  I've 

 11 heard people talking about 2F and 2G.  Look at 

 12 the statistics over the years, which I follow 

 13 constantly.  In fact, I print that out every 

 14 day for the last whatever years they've been 

 15 doing this on the computer.  1B is always the 

 16 third county in the state to sell out.  And 

 17 ninety-nine times out of a hundred or -- in 

 18 the last four or five years, there was no way 

 19 possible that he was going to get a doe 

 20 license.  

 21 The other things that really upset 

 22 him is, he comes over here and he's 

 23 restricted, because I think rifle hunters are 

 24 kind of at a disadvantage in a four-point 

 25 unit, like we have here.  All he can shoot is 
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  1 a four-point buck.  He says, Why should I come 

  2 to Pennsylvania and shoot a four-point buck 

  3 when I can stay in Ohio and hunt and I have no 

  4 restrictions and I get a doe license without 

  5 any trouble?  

  6 So what you're doing, a lot of the 

  7 nonresidents you're probably running out of 

  8 the state because of this, not only just 

  9 because of the four-point, but four-point -- 

 10 I'd like to see most people hunting from the 

 11 ground put four-points on the side of a buck 

 12 as it's running through the woods at fifty 

 13 yards away.  Flat out next to impossible.  

 14 As a matter of fact, I'm seventy-one 

 15 years old.  To be truthful about it, I've 

 16 hunted all my life.  I don't really have any 

 17 possible hopes hardly of killing another legal 

 18 buck in a four-point unit that I hunt in.  

 19 It's as simple as that.  

 20 I guess, in closing, I want to thank 

 21 you for your opportunity to testify.  And I 

 22 more than welcome any questions that you might 

 23 have, because the twenty-five years have shown 

 24 me a lot of things that's going on that I 

 25 haven't heard a lot of the people even testify 
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  1 here today.  

  2 Thank you.

  3 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Thank you for your 

  4 testimony, Mr. Peters.  

  5 First off, let me, on behalf of this 

  6 entire committee, congratulate you for twenty-

  7 five years that you have volunteered your 

  8 services to your county treasurer helping to 

  9 manage the distribution of the doe tags up in 

 10 Crawford County.  I think if there were 

 11 probably more people like you across the state 

 12 to volunteer their services to their 

 13 respective county treasurers, it's a good 

 14 possibility we probably wouldn't be sitting 

 15 here today.  

 16 So, with that thought in mind, 

 17 congratulation and keep up the good work. 

 18 I do have a couple of like questions 

 19 for you, though.  Tell me, how many doe 

 20 applications, in fact, do you process -- not 

 21 you personally -- is processed in Crawford 

 22 County about?  

 23 MR. PETERS:  Generally speaking, I 

 24 would say in the neighborhood of about twenty 

 25 thousand.
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  1 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  About twenty 

  2 thousand.  Are the bulk of those local, 

  3 reasonably local, within Crawford and maybe 

  4 immediate counties right around?  

  5 MR. PETERS:  Yes.  Generally 

  6 speaking, and I think that's what caused one 

  7 of the problems.  One of the problem areas, 

  8 and I'm sure everybody knows probably which 

  9 county that was up in the northwest that had a 

 10 real problem.  I think what happened, people 

 11 figured they would send to their own local 

 12 county.  And I think that particular county is 

 13 the most populated county in the northwest 

 14 division.  Consequently, more of the 

 15 applications went there.  I know for a fact 

 16 that the end of the fourth day of issuing, 

 17 they had only issued five hundred doe 

 18 license.  So that is where one of the problems 

 19 come.  

 20 Now, as I have tracked this thing in 

 21 the past, I have found that 1B will sell out 

 22 usually prior to them going on sale to 

 23 nonresidents.  This year, in Crawford County, 

 24 we issued nonresident doe license because of 

 25 that problem, because there was already, 
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  1 probably after the first week or ten days of 

  2 issuing, there was already enough license 

  3 applications in the system to fill that county 

  4 out or fill that unit out.  I'm sorry.  

  5 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Tell me, are you 

  6 the only volunteer in the county, in Crawford 

  7 County?  

  8 MR. PETERS:  No.  Actually, we have a 

  9 crew of about eight or ten people.  And it can 

 10 even go beyond that, because what they're 

 11 doing in a lot of cases, they're taking what 

 12 they call RSVP people, which are elderly 

 13 people that are retired that are just looking 

 14 for something to occupy their time, and 

 15 they're tickled to death to go in and help.  

 16 And it's something that we've always done 

 17 there, so it's not like we're cutting somebody 

 18 out of a job, you know.  It's not like a part 

 19 time --

 20 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  I would imagine 

 21 the county commissioners feel good about that 

 22 kind of service as well.

 23 MR. PETERS:  Definitely.  

 24 Definitely.  

 25 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Save a lot of 
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  1 money not having to hire a temporary to go in 

  2 and help out.  

  3 I guess that's all the questions I 

  4 have.  

  5 Is there any other questions for 

  6 Mr. Peters?  

  7 Representative Peifer.  

  8 REPRESENTATIVE PEIFER:  Mr. Peters, 

  9 thank you for coming today.  Thank you for 

 10 your service.  I appreciate your testimony.  

 11 You really give some of the details that most 

 12 of us don't think about in the process.  And I 

 13 know you traveled a long way.  

 14 Do you think it would be helpful if 

 15 there -- if treasurers would mail the doe 

 16 applications sooner rather than holding them 

 17 for a month?  What's your opinion on that?  

 18 MR. PETERS:  I think it would be.  In 

 19 fact, this year, before the end of the second 

 20 week, we were already mailing out all that we 

 21 had processed, which is nearly all of them.  

 22 In fact, probably after about six or seven 

 23 days, we were caught up with the process, so 

 24 we were able to send everything out as a --

 25 REPRESENTATIVE PEIFER:  So people had 

132



  1 received their licenses very timely then.  If 

  2 you ran out, you just stamped them and they 

  3 would know that you ran out, right, pretty 

  4 much a simple process.

  5 MR. PETERS:  Right.  Right.

  6 REPRESENTATIVE PEIFER:  I know from 

  7 my experience, I tried very hard to convince 

  8 other treasurers -- that's the one thing, as 

  9 we're talking to the treasurer's association, 

 10 it is a group of individuals, and we have 

 11 differences of opinions, and that's why Craig 

 12 gave us some of those numbers saying who wants 

 13 to sell, who doesn't.  You know, there's 

 14 different procedures that go in play, where 

 15 the Game Commission's one end and they have 

 16 the ability to operate and maneuver somewhat 

 17 better.  

 18 Because every county has a different 

 19 treasurer, those techniques seem to change.  I 

 20 always would mail mine sooner because that's 

 21 what my constituents would want.  Other 

 22 treasurers like to hold to make sure -- for 

 23 the checks to clear before -- and I was always 

 24 at odds with the other treasurers, but I think 

 25 we can alleviate many of the problems if we 
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  1 all move that date up, at least for the 

  2 residents, the residents, before we get -- if 

  3 we can issue them on a timely manner, instead 

  4 of holding all of them.  

  5 I did hear some people that would get 

  6 a nonresident -- I don't remember the 

  7 situation, but I think a nonresident had 

  8 applied and received their license before a 

  9 resident.  So I thought that was kind of an 

 10 issue for me, too.  It just seems like if we 

 11 could move that processing time up and 

 12 delivery date up and it all has to work 

 13 together to the same date, I think we could 

 14 alleviate a lot of these issues that we heard 

 15 today, especially the problems.

 16 MR. PETERS:  I think that one of the 

 17 reasons that that one gentleman had specified 

 18 that he had gotten his later than his 

 19 nonresident, I have a feeling I know which 

 20 county that is.  We wound up processing a 

 21 thousand license for that county.  There was 

 22 three counties up there in the northwest 

 23 division that wound up processing license for 

 24 that county that had a problem.  Consequently, 

 25 when we send them out early, the first 
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  1 gentleman might have sent it to the county 

  2 that was so late getting them out, where we 

  3 were sending them earlier, even though, you 

  4 know --

  5 REPRESENTATIVE PEIFER:  I took from 

  6 the treasurer from Lancaster, he detailed a 

  7 plan B.  And I think if you move faster and 

  8 move the deadlines up a little bit, you do 

  9 have time and wiggle room for plan B, just in 

 10 case something were to happen.  

 11 Because we all -- you know, the 

 12 typical staffs on the northern tier, they're 

 13 small, and if something happened, a death in 

 14 the family, a sickness or illness, it can 

 15 really affect how fast you process these 

 16 licenses.  So I think moving the process, the 

 17 delivery date, up would give you a plan B 

 18 option.

 19 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Are there any 

 20 other questions that wish -- Representative 

 21 Gergely.

 22 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Mr. Peters,  

 23 thank you for your time.  Appreciate you 

 24 coming down.  

 25 I think you brought up some really 
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  1 good points that we should, for the 

  2 testimony's sake, address and get on the 

  3 record.  I, too, worry about the first come, 

  4 first serve rush like you referred to in 

  5 Warren County.  

  6 How many -- I know you don't know, 

  7 but maybe the Game Commission can answer.  How 

  8 many licensing issuing agents are there in the 

  9 state?  

 10 MS. DERR:  Approximately seven 

 11 hundred.  

 12 COURT REPORTER:  I'm sorry.  I can't 

 13 hear you.

 14 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Seven 

 15 hundred.

 16 COURT REPORTER:  Thank you.

 17 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  There's 

 18 seven hundred licensing issuing agents that 

 19 would be available to do -- that's available 

 20 to do doe tags, that's including the sixty-

 21 seven treasurers; correct?  

 22 MS. DERR:  That's correct.

 23 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  And for 

 24 statistics, how many license -- adult licenses 

 25 were sold -- how many licenses were sold that 
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  1 were eligible to apply for a doe tag last 

  2 year?  Do we know?

  3 MR. ROE:  I'm sorry.  

  4 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  I'm going to 

  5 get to it. 

  6 MR. ROE:  You want to know how many 

  7 general hunting licenses prior to antlerless 

  8 assigned?  

  9 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Right.

 10 MR. ROE:  I'm going to say half a 

 11 million.

 12 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Five hundred 

 13 thousand.  

 14 MS. DERR:  Six hundred seventy 

 15 thousand.

 16 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Six hundred 

 17 seventy thousand total licenses sold.  

 18 MR. ROE:  General hunting license.  

 19 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Right, but 

 20 not everybody buys one that applies for a doe 

 21 tag.  We know there's a run at the stores 

 22 right before buck season opens; correct?  How 

 23 many of that percentage do you think doesn't 

 24 apply for a doe tag then?  Of the six seventy, 

 25 how many make up the run at the very end, 
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  1 right before the two-week season starts?  

  2 MR. ROE:  We'd have to go back to 

  3 look at it.  I know just what we -- from the 

  4 mailing from last year, we had -- we had half 

  5 a million applications in one week to be 

  6 processed last year, so assuming that was one 

  7 application for one hunter, we had about half 

  8 a million hunters apply for antlerless deer 

  9 licenses that first week. 

 10 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  So you have 

 11 about a half a million hunters applying for 

 12 1.6 million tags available.  How many was 

 13 available?  You said --

 14 MR. ROE:  Eight hundred some 

 15 thousand. 

 16 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Eight 

 17 hundred some thousand.  I'm sorry, you said 

 18 you mail out -- I apologize.  I wanted to be 

 19 correct.  

 20 And I -- Mr. Peters, my family from 

 21 Warren, Ohio, hasn't gotten a doe tag in  

 22 many, many years, just like your son, so 

 23 I know that.

 24 But going back to Representative 

 25 Pyle, I do think we owe it to the residents 
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  1 first, no offense to your son.  I do want to 

  2 make sure our residents have every 

  3 opportunity.  My cousin hasn't been hunting -- 

  4 we lost him as a hunter in Pennsylvania for 

  5 that reason.  I think we all know that.  That 

  6 is a part of this.  

  7 I think the lottery addresses the 

  8 issue of anybody individual to seven hundred 

  9 issuing agents having two thousand in line, I 

 10 don't think with the lottery availability, 

 11 first come, first serve is eliminated.  But if 

 12 you set the first week window, something like 

 13 that, within the first seven days, I think 

 14 we'd do accomplish both ends, having it 

 15 available for the lottery to happen and a 

 16 timely basis for it to occur.  

 17 So -- and I still struggle with how 

 18 licenses are issued, being from a county 

 19 with -- I don't even know how many were issued 

 20 out of Allegheny County this year, doe tags 

 21 being processed.  How many?  

 22 MS. DERR:  As of the second week of 

 23 October, Allegheny County issued sixty-four 

 24 hundred.  

 25 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  That's the 
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  1 county sales.  How many did they process?  

  2 MS. DERR:  Okay.  They processed 

  3 sixty-four hundred.

  4 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  They 

  5 processed -- and the rest got mailed out to 

  6 other counties?

  7 MS. DERR:  I hope that they weren't 

  8 sent out to other counties but possibly 

  9 rejected.  I don't know that.  

 10 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Okay.  So 

 11 not only people buy a hunting license in 

 12 Allegheny County?  

 13 MS. DERR:  I can only imagine, 

 14 because last year you issued thirty-six 

 15 thousand.  

 16 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Doe 

 17 licenses.  

 18 MS. DERR:  Yes.

 19 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  So far this 

 20 year only sixty-four hundred were processed.  

 21 MS. DERR:  Yes.  

 22 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  So they 

 23 weren't even efficient with sixty-four hundred 

 24 is what I'm figuring out.  I understand you're 

 25 raising your hand, but I got the calls, you 
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  1 didn't.  

  2 MR. ROE:  It's hard to say because 

  3 you could have mailed it in to Lancaster 

  4 County for a license in 2B this year.  

  5 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Right.  But 

  6 we got testimony from the treasurers that were 

  7 backing up the 90 percent of what they 

  8 received were from their counties, from two 

  9 separate treasurers.  Correct?  

 10 MR. ROE:  It appears that people sent 

 11 their antlerless application to the county of 

 12 residence.  And those in the more metropolitan 

 13 areas should have received more application.  

 14 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  If we had 

 15 thirty-six thousand last year and we only have 

 16 six thousand this year, there is a -- either 

 17 there's a significant problem or nobody has 

 18 faith in my county treasurer.  I don't know 

 19 which one it is. 

 20 MR. ROE:  I won't care to comment on 

 21 either one of those right now.  

 22 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Somebody 

 23 should -- I mean, these are answers concerning 

 24 this issue.  I mean, I know Mr. Weinstein.  I 

 25 think he's a great guy.  I personally go down 
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  1 there and buy my tags.  I actually don't go 

  2 up, because of the process, even going to 

  3 Forest County anymore.  I just buy the tags 

  4 down in Allegheny because they never sell 

  5 out.  You can just walk in the county and buy 

  6 them.  

  7 But this is troubling.  Only sixty-

  8 four hundred sold through this whole thing and 

  9 thirty-six thousand last year.  I just can't 

 10 correlate it.  That's all.  

 11 MR. ROE:  One thing, like wildlife 

 12 management unit 2B, that's Allegheny County 

 13 primarily, and 5C, the people know they're 

 14 going to be there.  They can wait till the 

 15 last minute to purchase them. 

 16 MS. DERR:  They do.  

 17 MR. ROE:  And we're doing a 

 18 comparison to current years up until last 

 19 year.  Is that last year?  

 20 MS. DERR:  Twenty-five thousand 

 21 left.  

 22 MR. ROE:  She has twenty-five 

 23 thousand left in 2B right now.  They could be 

 24 sold out over the next two months.  

 25 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  So we're 
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  1 thinking that metropolitan hunters are sending 

  2 to the county where they want to get their doe 

  3 tag, most likely.  

  4 MR. ROE:  Again, 2B, I think, is a 

  5 fairly unique situation in the sense of, you 

  6 know you can get that one the day before you 

  7 go out.  So people are very reluctant to use 

  8 2B as a first or second or even third choice  

  9 on their first application because you can 

 10 always get one.

 11 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  You never 

 12 put it down --

 13 MR. ROE:  They never sold out 2B for 

 14 the last two or three years.  It's kind of a 

 15 unique situation there.  

 16 MR. PETERS:  We did, in Crawford 

 17 County, process quite a few from Allegheny 

 18 County.  

 19 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Is that the 

 20 thousand you were referring to?  

 21 MR. PETERS:  Well, yes.  1B or 

 22 whatever that is.  I'm not sure what that --

 23 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  2B.

 24 MR. PETERS:  We did process, and 

 25 usually it was in a bonus situation or their 
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  1 second or third choice.  

  2 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  I know 

  3 this.  I know that we have more general 

  4 hunting licenses sold in Allegheny County than 

  5 the rest of the state.  And to have only 

  6 sixty-four hundred processed, my doe hunters 

  7 that want a tag had to send them somewhere.  

  8 So either the numbers are off at my county 

  9 treasurers, because they are significant, 

 10 or -- and I would have say to Westmoreland 

 11 County, because a lot of folks travel north 

 12 from Westmoreland County.  I'd like to know 

 13 where they are.  

 14 There's a process that is not 

 15 clicking.  Either it's 90 percent or 

 16 it's guys, like my guys, really were sending 

 17 them out, and then they may have not been 

 18 served as appropriately as the person that 

 19 lived in that county.  

 20 MR. ROE:  I can only speculate, but 

 21 let's assume that those in Allegheny County 

 22 sent their first round to another county 

 23 treasurer where they wanted to hunt.  

 24 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Are the 

 25 treasurers mandated to have -- is there a 
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  1 protocol?  Do they just sort them as they see 

  2 them?  There's a return address on every 

  3 envelope; right?  Oh, look, this one's from my 

  4 county, this one's not.  Is there a protocol 

  5 that you have put in place for that?  

  6 MR. ROE:  They're supposed to serve 

  7 them first come, first serve as they come 

  8 through the mail.

  9 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Is there a 

 10 protocol?  

 11 MR. ROE:  First come, first serve as 

 12 they come through the mail.

 13 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  If it's not 

 14 serve?  Never had a problem, never had an 

 15 accusation?

 16 MR. ROE:  All the time.  

 17 REPRESENTATIVE GERGELY:  Okay.  

 18 That's my point.  

 19 Thank you.

 20 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Representative 

 21 Pyle.

 22 REPRESENTATIVE PYLE:  Thanks, 

 23 Mr. Chairman.

 24 I wanted to thank Mr. Peters.  I'm 

 25 from Armstrong.  I'm not that far from 

145



  1 Crawford.  I know it's a very, very long 

  2 journey, and I appreciate, as Representative 

  3 Peifer pointed out, this is a common sense 

  4 thing that we can tweak and twitch and make 

  5 better.  

  6 I too have heard it's really hard to 

  7 write on the plastic yellow things, and a lot 

  8 of my guys have asked me why are we even 

  9 bothering.  It's smearing off and whatnot.  

 10 More comments than anything.  I thank 

 11 the chairman for his indulgence.  

 12 The gentleman from Allegheny, who I'm 

 13 with on sportsmen causes, I would be overjoyed 

 14 to stomp through the woods of Indiana County 

 15 anytime time you'd like.  I just happen to 

 16 feel the guys, there should be a promise to 

 17 people who live in those counties to get at 

 18 those deer, antlerless doe tags, before people 

 19 travel from all over.  

 20 As the gentleman from Allegheny 

 21 pointed out, our merchants really don't mind 

 22 the extra sales from out of county coming in.  

 23 That's a very great bonus for whatever county 

 24 sells the tag.  However, I sincerely doubt 

 25 that those sales are taking place anywhere but 
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  1 at the big box store that the gentleman from 

  2 Lancaster, Mr. Ebersole, identified earlier.  

  3 I think, as the chairman and I have 

  4 discussed up here very quietly, we're really 

  5 close to the automated system that everybody 

  6 can be happy with, but it's input from folks 

  7 like you, Mr. Peters, and all the other 

  8 speakers we had today that's going to allow us 

  9 to make those tweaks and twitches that we have 

 10 to make.  

 11 One of the ideas I just tossed to the 

 12 chairman here, my concerns about residents of 

 13 the particular county getting first crack at 

 14 that big doe would be served just by opening 

 15 the license period up a day prior.  You know, 

 16 guys in the county get that one day leg up on 

 17 going after the automated things.  

 18 I do feel a real-time software 

 19 addition to the instant license check that 

 20 would give real-time, this is how many permits 

 21 and tags are available, would clear things 

 22 up.  So the guy living in 2B, you know, would 

 23 see, you know, what is full.  I have to bounce 

 24 over to another one.  

 25 Probably the worst input I've gotten 
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  1 out of this system -- and this is constructive 

  2 for the Game Commission, which I have a lot of 

  3 respect for.  The one criticism I've heard 

  4 about this thing is some counties might be 

  5 being oversold.  There is a concern in my 

  6 district, in Armstrong and Indiana.  It's 

  7 right in the heart of the hunting belt.  We 

  8 grow up doing that.  We don't want a situation 

  9 as is happening in other traditional rich in 

 10 game areas like Lancaster and Potter, where 

 11 the deer herds have been seriously lessened.  

 12 It's part of our heritage.  And for you, 

 13 Mr. Peters, I have every hope that you will go 

 14 get another buck, just use a faster bullet.  

 15 There you go.  

 16 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

 17 Bleed them a little bit.

 18 CHAIRMAN STABACK:  Mr. Peters, once 

 19 again, thank you very much for coming here.  

 20 Your suggestions for improving the system are 

 21 well taken and I'm sure will give the Game 

 22 Commission something to think about in the 

 23 days ahead. 

 24 Once again, thank you for being 

 25 here.  
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  1 And the testimony of Mr. Peters will 

  2 conclude today's hearing.  I want to thank you 

  3 again, those who testified before the 

  4 committee today.  

  5 As I said at the outset, today's 

  6 hearing was without a set purpose other than 

  7 to collect information about the process now 

  8 in place for the distribution of antlerless 

  9 deer permits.  Any steps taken to change that 

 10 system should be done with what we heard today 

 11 as well as the very best interest of 

 12 Pennsylvania's hunting public.  

 13 On that note, this hearing is 

 14 adjourned.  

 15 (Whereupon, the hearing concluded at 

 16 11:56 a.m.) 

 17

 18  * * * * *

 19

 20 WRITTEN REMARKS SUBMITTED

 21

 22 (The following letter was submitted 

 23 by Ed Maryott.)  

 24

 25 To:   Rep. Staback 20 October, 2009 
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  1 Game and Fisheries Committee 43 A East Wing PO 

  2 Box 202138 Harrisburg, PA 17120-2138 From: Ed 

  3 Maryott RR#5 Box 5518 Towanda, Pa 18848 

  4 Subject: ATTN. Steve McMullen, Issuing of 

  5 Antlerless Deer tags.  Dear Rep. Staback/Steve 

  6 McMullen I would like the following entered 

  7 into record at the October 22, 2009 meeting 

  8 Issuing of Antlerless Deer tags.  First issue 

  9 would be the timeliness in which the Country 

 10 Treasure can get the Antlerless permits issued 

 11 and mailed out.  In the past, they could set 

 12 on the antlerless permit and issue the tag 

 13 when time allowed.  Now with an County 

 14 Treasure able to access the allotted 

 15 allocations it no longer is a first come first 

 16 severed system.  For example, My Father, 

 17 Brother and sent out our application on Friday 

 18 July 11, 2009 so they would arrive at Towanda 

 19 on 13 July, 2009 the first day County 

 20 Treasure's would begin accepting application.  

 21 Here are the issuing data's of our antlerless 

 22 permit.  7-11-09 mail applications 7-13-09 the 

 23 first day County Treasure's would begin 

 24 accepting application.  Issued date 7-17-09  

 25 My first round permit Issued date 7-20-09 
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  1 Brother's first round permit 7-27-09 County 

  2 Treasure's would begin accepting non-residents 

  3 application.  Issued date 7-29-09 dad's first 

  4 round permit, Red Flag, other County Treasures 

  5 may have been filling non-residents 

  6 application first.  8-1-09 Dad and I mailed 

  7 for bonus permit mail application 1st round 

  8 bonus permits.  8-3-09 Brother mailed for his 

  9 bonus permit mail applications Issued date 

 10 8-11-09  Brother's first round bonus permit.  

 11 Issued date 8-13-09 Dad's first round bonus 

 12 permit.  8-17-09 the first day County 

 13 Treasure's would begin accepting application 

 14 2nd round bonus permits.  8-19-09 My first 

 15 round bonus permit.  Again note it was issued 

 16 after the start of the 2nd round bonus 

 17 permits.  Clear there is an issuing problem 

 18 with the current system.  Like many other 

 19 hunters I feel we should be able to get our 

 20 antlerless permit at the PELS.  Two option 

 21 suggestion, First option All issuing agents 

 22 can issue antlerless permit.  So not to 

 23 overwhelm the Issuing Agents a longer time for 

 24 obtaining an antlerless tag would be set.  

 25 Starting on July 1 Resident would be able to 
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  1 obtain a antlerless permit Starting on 1 

  2 September, Nonresident could obtain a 

  3 antlerless permit First bonus rounds starting 

  4 15 September Second bonus round starting 1 

  5 October.  Spread out of this many days hunters 

  6 will have time to obtain permit without 

  7 overwhelming the Issuing Agents.  Second 

  8 option If antlerless permit issuing stay in 

  9 control of County Treasures guild lines must 

 10 be set.  1. At least one or more employee must 

 11 work sole on antlerless permit tag issuing if 

 12 application are in the Office.  2. Antlerless 

 13 permit application need to be issued within 72 

 14 hour after being received.  3. Antlerless tag 

 15 must be mailed out the day of issue or next 

 16 day, based on mail pick time.

 17 You can reply to me at:  Ed Maryott, 

 18 RR#5 Box 5518, Towanda, PA 18848, 

 19 smurf@emcs.net, home phone:  570-265-3726.  

 20 Cell phone:

 21 Sincerely,

 22 (This concludes the letter submitted 

 23 by Ed Maryott.  The content was not altered to 

 24 correct any errors in spelling, grammar, or 

 25 punctuation.) 
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  1 * * * * *

  2

  3 (The following letter was submitted 

  4 by George R. Naugle.)

  5

  6 October 1, 2009

  7 Honorable members of the House Game 

  8 and Fisheries Committee:

  9 Since you are meeting to take 

 10 testimony on this item of business while I am 

 11 away on a hunting trip to South Carolina, I 

 12 have prepared my testimony in written form.  I 

 13 would have much preferred to have been present 

 14 at the hearing, but unfortunately that is not 

 15 possible.

 16 The issue I wish to address is the 

 17 manner in which we now issue antlerless deer 

 18 licenses.  I hope that you will be able to 

 19 make a very much needed change in the way this 

 20 is done.  Under the system currently in place, 

 21 there is a potential for disaster to happen.  

 22 What I want is for the Pennsylvania Game 

 23 Commission to issue all hunting licenses via 

 24 the Point of Sale system, thus allowing all 

 25 point of sale license issuing agents to issue 
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  1 antlerless deer tags at the time when a 

  2 person's hunting license is purchased.  So 

  3 long as the allocation has not been exhausted  

  4 for a wildlife management unit, an antlerless 

  5 tag could be issued and a license purchaser 

  6 would know immediately whether or not he is 

  7 successful.  Here is why I think this is a 

  8 good idea whose time has come.

  9 Consider the following scenario.  

 10 Under the current system, a hunter can apply 

 11 to any county treasurer for an antlerless deer 

 12 license in any wildlife management unit.  Say 

 13 for example that I desire a license for WMU 

 14 4A, so I fill out my application and send it 

 15 to my county treasurer on the day it is 

 16 supposed to be sent.  My county treasurer is 

 17 "too busy to get to this task right away," but 

 18 other county treasurers are not, so my 

 19 application sits on his desk for days, or even 

 20 weeks.  By the time he gets around to doing 

 21 his job, all licenses for WMU 4A have been 

 22 issued, so I am out of luck and either gets a 

 23 license for my second or third choice or none 

 24 at all.  Gentlemen, this could be a major 

 25 cause of anger among those whose county 
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  1 treasurers don't get to this task right away.

  2 In fact, this exact scenario has 

  3 happened this year in several counties.  Some 

  4 who sent in their antlerless deer license 

  5 applications waited several weeks or more, 

  6 only to find out that their county treasurer 

  7 did not process their applications promptly so 

  8 they were unsuccessful.  Some did not get even 

  9 their second or third choice.  This was on 

 10 their first application, that one that nearly 

 11 everyone gets a license, but their county 

 12 treasurer sat on the applications so long that 

 13 all for those wildlife management units were 

 14 issued before he got around to doing something 

 15 about it.

 16 Consider another possible scenario.  

 17 A particular county treasurer decides to hand 

 18 pick those applications from friends first, or 

 19 those who are politically connected.  This 

 20 happened in the past in some counties, and 

 21 will probably happen again.

 22 My personal experience this year was 

 23 much more positive.  I submitted my first 

 24 round application to my county treasurer in 

 25 Franklin County.  About three days later when 
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  1 I checked the Game Commission's website, I 

  2 found that my application was successful.  My 

  3 second round application went to a neighboring 

  4 county, Fulton, because I heard that they were 

  5 even more hunter friendly.  I found out on the 

  6 first day after submitting that I was 

  7 successful, and received the tag in the mail 

  8 even before I got the first one from Franklin 

  9 County.  I had both tags in my hands before 

 10 the first of September.  This is how the 

 11 system is supposed to work, and it would be 

 12 even better if the county treasurers were only 

 13 a part of the process, not a hurdle to clear.  

 14 By this I mean that they should be issuing 

 15 agents under the point of sale system, and 

 16 that tags should be awarded when one buys his 

 17 hunting license.

 18 I do not believe that there would be 

 19 a mad rush to Wal-Mart or any other issuing 

 20 agent on the first day that licenses are 

 21 available.  There are so many point of sale 

 22 issuing agents that this would work itself out 

 23 fairly quickly.  Still, we should reward those 

 24 who purchase their hunting licenses early.  

 25 This is the way many other states work their 
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  1 antlerless license sales.  It would work here 

  2 in Pennsylvania just as well.

  3 For the above reasons, I would 

  4 strongly urge you to initiate the necessary 

  5 legislation to change the way antlerless 

  6 licenses are issued.  They should be issued on 

  7 a first come, first served basis when a hunter 

  8 purchases his hunting license.  When he 

  9 applies with the point of sale system, he is 

 10 asked whether or not he wishes to purchase an 

 11 antlerless deer license.  If he answers that 

 12 he does, he is asked for up to three WMUs in 

 13 order of his preference.  He will know 

 14 immediately whether or not he has an 

 15 antlerless deer license and for which WMU.  

 16 Thank you for considering my thoughts 

 17 on this subject.

 18 Regards, George R. Naugle, 32 

 19 St. Thomas Edenville Rd., Saint Thomas, PA 

 20 17252, 717-369-2154.  

 21 (This concludes the letter submitted 

 22 by George Naugle.  The content was not altered 

 23 to correct any errors in spelling, grammar, or 

 24 punctuation.)

 25 * * * * *
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